
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

         
 

 

                           
 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Thursday, August 18, 2016 
 

7:00 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

James Steenbergen, President • Kathryn Kaminski, Vice President • Kay Danziger, Secretary 

Anna Gonzales • Dr. Tyson Harrell • Melisa Roberts • Frank Torres 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Recognitions/awards  

4. Introductions  

5. Audience to patrons  

6. Approval of minutes  

A. July 19, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 7 

B. July 21, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting 14 

C. August 4, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 25 

D. August 4, 2016 - Special Meeting 27 

7. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

8. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

9. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider adoption of 2016-2017 budgets 30 

2. Consider adoption, by ordinance, the 2016 tax rate for the 2016-2017 

school year 

31 

3. Consider approval of 2016 tax year appraisal roll and new property value 33 

4. Consider approval of the certification of 2016 tax year anticipated 

collection rate 

48 

5. Consider approval of resolution for commitment of fund balance as of 

August 31, 2016 

50 

6. Consider approval of 2016-2017 compensation plan 52 

7. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 76 

8. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 80 

9. Consider approval of offer to purchase tax resale property 82 

10. Consider approval of vehicle purchases for Maintenance and Operations 86 

11. Consider approval of the 2016-2017 agreement with Memorial Hermann 

Community Benefit Corporation 

87 



12. Consider approval of documentation and process for naming 

Superintendent designees for automated Texas Education Agency Secure 

Environment (TEASE) users 

105 

13. Consider approval of resolution proclaiming:  

a. Childhood Cancer Awareness Month 106 

b. Hispanic Heritage Month 108 

14. Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 110 

a. Common Threads  

b. Foster High School  

c. Lamar Junior High School  

15. Discussion and possible action for the final scope of work and budget 

increase for the Terry High School baseball complex renovations 

111 

16. Consider approval of geotechnical study for the practice pool at:  

a. Foster High School 114 

b. Fulshear High School 121 

c. George Ranch High School 128 

17. Consider approval of professional surveying services for the practice pool 

at: 

 

a. Foster High School 135 

b. Fulshear High School 140 

c. George Ranch High School 145 

18. Consider approval of schematic design for the practice pool at:  

a. Foster High School 150 

b. Fulshear High School 151 

c. George Ranch High School 152 

19. Consider approval of Texas Accessibility Standards Review and Inspection 

for the Huggins Elementary School driveway improvements 

153 

20. Consider approval of CSP #32-2016VRG for the Huggins Elementary 

School driveway improvements 

158 

21. Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy temporary electrical service fees 

for Lindsey Elementary School 

160 

22. Consider approval of CSP #27-2016G for the construction of the new 

Agricultural Facility #2 

164 

23. Consider approval of construction material testing services for the new 

Agricultural Facility #2 

167 

24. Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy street light agreement for 

Arredondo Elementary School 

182 

25. Consider approval of professional topographic surveying services for the 

Support Services Facility new site 

187 

B. Goal:  Personnel  



1. Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school 

year 

192 

10. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. State of Texas Assessments of Academic Readiness (STAAR) Results - 

Spring 2016 

193 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Board policies - First Reading 203 

2. Conversion and remarketing of the Series 2014A Lamar CISD Variable 

Rate Unlimited Tax Schoolhouse Bonds 

224 

3. Tax Collection Report 225 

4. Payments for Construction Projects 231 

5. Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 234 

6. Bond Update  

a. 2011 238 

b. 2014 248 

7. Transportation Update 260 

8. Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 262 

9. Energy Management Report 263 

11. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

267 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of 

professional personnel 

 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 268 

c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 283 

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land  

b. Consider the purchase of a parcel of land consisting of approximately 

15.1 acres in Fort Bend County, Texas for use as an Elementary School 

Site 

 

c. Consider the purchase of a parcel of land consisting of approximately 14 

acres in Fort Bend County, Texas for use as an Elementary School Site 

 

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

 



Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 

 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 

Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour or place given in this notice or as soon after the 

commencement of the meeting covered by this notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 

session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Section 551.071-

551.084, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:  

 

Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from a hearing during 

examination of another witness. 

 

Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 

subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 

Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property. 

 

Section 551.073 - For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or 

donation. 

 

Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 

reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 

charges against a public officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.082 - For the purpose of considering discipline of a public school child or children or to 

hear a complaint by an employee against another employee if the complaint or charge directly results 

in a need for a hearing. 

 

Section 551.076 - To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security 

personnel or devices. 

 

Section 551.083 - For the purpose of considering the standards, guidelines, terms or conditions the 

Board will follow, or instruct its representatives to follow, in consultation with representatives of 

employee groups in connection with consultation agreements provided for by Section 13.901 of the 

Texas Education Code. 

 

Section 551.0821 – For the purpose of deliberating a matter regarding a public school student if 

personally identifiable information about the student will necessarily be revealed by the deliberation. 

 





 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 19th day of July 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Interim Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 

7



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 2 
 
2. Discussion of July 21st Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The Board reviewed the July 21st Regular Board Meeting agenda items. 
 

10. ACTION ITEMS 
 
10. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
10. A-2  Consider approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and 
  Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC) 
 

Ms. Kaminski asked how many students participate in this program.  Ms. Mathis said 
that it fluctuates from year to year, it is a very small number of students, and it 
depends on what the ARD committee decides for each individual student.  
 

10. A-4  Consider approval of the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 agreement for sports medicine  
  services between Lamar CISD and Memorial Hermann Health System 

 
Ms. Roberts asked if last school year was the first year the District was in agreement 
with MHHS.  Ms. Haack said that was correct.  Ms. Roberts asked what amount they 
are funding. Ms. Haack said the District receives $125K per year.  Ms. Roberts asked 
how the money is being used.  Ms. Haack said this past year it was used for the 
things the trainers need at each of the campuses.  Ms. Roberts said other districts 
have used the money to obtain more trainers, she asked if we see the need for more 
trainers.  Ms. Haack said we do not see a need, but within this agreement we can 
contract out more trainers.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked what the plans are for this year’s money.  Ms. Haack said that 
has not yet been determined.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked how the attendance was with them.  Ms. Haack said it was good 
and provided to all campuses. 
 

10. A-5  Consider approval of the 2016-2017 agreement for Prevention Services 
 

Ms. Danziger asked how the schools are decided upon.  Ms. Vogt said they are 
submitted through the Director of Student Services and they are determined on a 
priority level.  Ms. Danziger asked if each principal had to agree to the program and 
asked how that will work.  Ms. Vogt said yes they had to agree and this goes through 
the counselors and the services are scheduled through them.  She said the parents 
are notified of services being provided. 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked how many 4 and 5 year olds have a need for this program.  Ms. 
Vogt said there are quite a few that go through the program and it is age appropriate 
and depends on the family needs.   
 
Ms. Gonzales said this is a research based prevention program and provides 
information and skill based training to the family.  She said this is to teach children 
decision making skills, making good friends, communication skills, etc.  This program 
helps reduce risk factors.   
 
Ms. Vogt said it is difficult to give an exact number of 4 and 5 year olds because there 
is group instruction, she said there are very easily several hundred students.  Ms. 
Vogt said they do presentations to age levels, but the counselors pick smaller groups 

8



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 3 
 

of children that might benefit from more selective support services.  Ms. Kaminski 
asked how they picked which elementary schools were selected.  Ms. Vogt said it is 
available to any school that might be interested but they have high priority schools 
with higher incidents.   
 
Ms. Gonzales said this is a really good program and it builds on each grade level. 
 

10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
10. B-3  Consider approval of budget amendment requests  
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked about the funding of $106k for the classroom instruction.  Ms. 
Ludwig said they are amending from fund balance. 
 

10. B-5  Consider approval of amendment to contract for school resource officers 
 

Ms. Roberts asked how they determine the number of officers needed.  Dr. Harrell 
said each high school gets an officer for each high school and junior high.  Dr. Randle 
said that is correct and they service that complex as well as if one of the elementary 
schools within that area calls for them.  Dr. Randle said the District also has security 
officers in addition to the police officers.  Ms. Roberts asked if we have received a 
recommendation to do anything different.  Dr. Randle said they have received 
requests for an officer on every campus.  He went on to say that the District is 
adequately covered because most of the incidents are at the secondary complexes.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked if they request needs from the District.  Dr. Randle said yes they do 
and they also understand the parameters of the District’s budget. 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if we will ever have to consider having our own police force.  Dr. 
Randle said that has been looked at a couple of times and they have found it is better 
for the District to contract with the police department because we do not have to carry 
the same type of liabilities and the training that is required.  He also said that if we 
have a big incident all of Rosenberg Police Department can come and support 
because they are part of that system. 
 

10. B-6  Discussion and action on resolution authorizing the reappraisal of flood/disaster area  
  property within Lamar CISD 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if the amount is already considered for the properties that the 
families are not going to be able to rebuild.  Ms. Ludwig said it should be.  She went 
on to say this value will be adjusted for the 2016 tax year and it will have somewhat of 
a lasting impact because as of January 1st they do the values for 2017 tax purposes.  
They believe most of the renovations will not be done by then.  Ms. Roberts said 
some people just found out they will not be allowed to rebuild 
 

10. B-7  Consider approval of cafeteria meal price increases for 2016-2017 
 

Ms. Kaminski asked if there is no choice in increasing the prices, then why the adult 
and visitors prices would not be increased as well.  Mr. Antignolo said the current rule 
says that the adult prices has to be x amount above the highest paid price in the 
district.  He said the $3 that is charged for adults, more than covers the required rule.  
He went on to say the adult meal is the same size as the largest student meal.   
 

 

9



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 4 
 
10. B-11 Discussion of wine and beer permit at convenience store near school district property 

 
Ms. Danziger asked if there are any other businesses within that area that already sell 
alcohol.  Dr. Randle said right across the street at the Stripes store.  Mr. Steenbergen 
said they are out of the 1,000 foot zone.   
 
Ms. Roberts said last year one was not approved close to Meyer Elementary, and 
wondered what the difference was.  Mr. Steenbergen said that one was much closer 
and in the walking area of the school. 
 
Ms. Kaminski wanted to point out that we have this one on one side of the school and 
the next one is on the other side of the school.   
 

10. B-12 Discussion of wine and beer permit at ballroom near school district property 
  
Dr. Randle said this is a ballroom that will be used for weddings and they will be able 
to serve alcohol at these events. 
 
Dr. Harrell said they put potential benefits they might offer the district and wondered if 
this would be in writing.  Dr. Randle said the district does not engage in a contract 
with them.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked what happens if the ballroom sales the property or changes the 
type of business. Dr. Randle said they would have to come back because the 
purpose is different than what they originally requested.  Ms. Danziger said they 
would have to reapply for the liquor license and at that time it would come back to the 
school district.  Dr. Randle said they are required to notify the district and if we did not 
approve, they would have to indicate that on the application.  They still could be 
approved even without our support.  Ms. Kaminski said she feels they should have 
studied the location with it being close to the schools.  Mr. Steenbergen said they did, 
both are outside the 1,000 foot distance.  Ms. Kaminski asked why they require the 
district’s approval.  Dr. Randle said the ballroom actually touches portions of the 
campus, like the baseball field, not the actual school building. 
 

10. B-14 Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas Association of 
  School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if we have only received two requests for support.  Dr. Randle 
said yes. 

 
10. B-15 Consider approval of change order #1 for pipe repairs for Pink Elementary School 

  
Ms. Roberts asked if this was the same school they went into an agreement with the 
City of Richmond or is this different.  Mr. Steenbergen said that was the water for 
Williams Elementary. 
 

10. B-17 Consider approval of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 142 agreements  
  and fees for Bentley Elementary School 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if this MUD is in that subdivision.  Dr. Randle said yes, it is the 
Westheimer Lakes MUD. 
 
 

 

10



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 5 
 
10. B-20 Consider approval of design development for the Terry High School baseball complex  
  renovations 
 

Mr. Schneider from PBK presented the design development.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked who they met with for the needs of the complex.  Mr. Schneider said 
they meet with Coach Teykl and his baseball and softball staff along with Mr. Rice, 
Mr. Hoyt, and Dr. Wehring.   
 
Ms. Gonzales asked where the funds are coming from for Phase 2 and 3.  Mr. 
McKeever said from the maintenance side they are looking at funds from within the 
budget.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked what the estimated timeline is for the four Phases.  Mr. Hoyt said 
the intent is for Phase 1 to be completed before baseball season starts at the end of 
January.  The concession building could take longer and they see this continuing into 
baseball season.  Dr. Harrell asked if there are already crews working, and if there 
was other money available could the project be completed sooner.  Mr. Hoyt said they 
would look and could possibly have two contractors going at once. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked if it is possible to have numbers available on Thursday.  Mr. 
Schneider said yes. 
 
Dr. Harrell asked if there is anything the coaches expressed interest in that is not 
included in this plan.  Mr. Schneider said there was a discussion of locker rooms 
similar to what Lamar included. 
 
Ms. Kaminski said it sounds like we are trying to piece everything together and do a 
little at a time, she agrees that all the other facilities are a lot better and this is one of 
the worst ones.  She wondered if moneywise if it was cheaper to bulldoze down and 
start completely over.  Mr. Schneider said he could bring numbers on Thursday. 

 
10. C GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
10. C-1 Consider approval of appraisal calendar for the 2016-2017 school year 
 

Ms. Kaminski asked if it was typical for them to be in school two to three weeks and 
then start their appraisals.  Dr. Bowen said it is, this has been the rule for several 
years.   

 
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. A-1  Budget Workshop  
 

Ms. Ludwig presented. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked if we have seen any benefits from the resale of some of the 
2014 bonds to improve the rate to reduce some debt service cost.  Ms. Ludwig said 
no that is upcoming.  She said it will give some relief. 
 
 

 

11



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 6 
 
11. A-6  Transportation Update 

 
Ms. Roberts asked how the district looks right now as far as hiring.  Mr. Jones said 
there are people in training, but they still need several people.  Ms. Roberts asked if 
we are still looking at double routes.  Mr. Jones said the goal is to minimize the 
double routes.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked about pre-kindergarten and is the program still in place.  Mr. 
Jones said they plan to expand the blue card program to kindergarten.  Ms. Kaminski 
asked about having extra people on the buses.  Mr. McKeever said they will follow the 
same procedures as last year.   
 

11. A-8  Naming of Facilities 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if they are going to move forward with this as an agenda item.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said no it will be done at the next bond election and there will be a 
process in place to let everyone participate in this.  Ms. Roberts asked if a formal 
notice will be sent to those who did want to name other facilities.  Mr. Rockwood said 
seven individuals submitted nominations during the process and they can go back 
and let them know it is the board’s pleasure to post phone until the next bond 
election.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if there is anything in policy about the process for naming 
facilities.  Mr. Rockwood said CW (LOCAL) is the policy but does not have specifics 
on the process, they can update this policy. 

 
11. A-9  Local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled 

 
Ms. Danziger clarified if they are asking for another break in addition to the 65 and 
older exemption.  Ms. Ludwig said yes and we have never had a local option 
exemption.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if this will be a decrease to the general fund.  Mr. Steenbergen 
said this would be about a million dollar decrease.   

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 
e. Mid-year Superintendent Evaluation 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  

12



Minutes of Special Board Meeting July 19, 2016 – page 7 
 

Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 7:54 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 

 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 

 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:06 p.m. 
 
 
 
12. A-1(a) Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional  
  personnel 
 

It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Roberts that the Board of Trustees 
approve personnel as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 

  Employed 
 
  Auffant, Monica  TBD   Assistant Principal    
        George Junior High 
 
 Flemming, Carolyn  TBD   Assistant Principal 
        George Junior High 
 
 Jackson, Keonta  TBD   Assistant Director, Assessment 
        and Compliance 
        Special Education 
 
 Nelson, Nicole   TBD   Assistant Athletic Director 
        Athletics 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 
 

13



 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
On this the 21st day of July 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Interim Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2. OPENING OF MEETING 
 
A moment of silence was observed and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 

14



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 9 
 
3. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
 

a. Technology Student Association State Winners 
 

Noah Joe from George Ranch High School 
Jairon McVea from George Ranch High School 
Courtney Le from George Ranch High School 
Rachel Frary from George Ranch High School 
Sydney Wilson from George Ranch High School 
George El-Achkar from Reading Jr. High School 
Garrett Mickelson from Reading Jr. High School 
Avery Nycum from Reading Jr. High School 
Eric Luckett from Reading Jr. High 
Noah Jaskoiski from George Ranch High School 
Ann Marie Jeremiassen from George Ranch High School 
Arturo Rodriguez from George Ranch High School 
Abigail Myers from Lamar Consolidated High School 
Junaid Ahmed from Lamar Consolidated High School 
Victoria Nelson from Lamar Consolidated High School 
Jacob Bowman from Lamar Consolidated High School 
Anthony Lentini from Lamar Consolidated High School 

 
4. INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Dr. Kathleen Bowen introduced new staff to the Board: 
 Monica Auffant, assistant principal, George Junior High 
 Yunghee Choi, associate principal, Williams Elementary 
 Crystal Coronel, assistant principal, Terry High 
 Derek Johnk, assistant principal, Terry High 
 Carolyn Flemming, assistant principal, George Junior High 
 Theresa Gage, assistant principal, Hutchison Elementary 
 Katrina Guillory, assistant principal, Reading Jr. High 
 Keonta Jackson, assistant director, assessment and compliance, special education 
 Sharyn Kitto, assistant principal, Leaman Jr. High 
 Nichole Nelson, assistant athletic director 

 
5. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

Mr. Richard Eubanks addressed the Board about the over 65 and disabled exemption option 
asking for an increase in the reduction for these taxpayers in LCISD. 
 
Ms. Dora Olivo mentioned this is the first meeting after the charges were dismissed against 
Ms. Gonzales and many members in the community are grateful for this outcome.  She 
hopes the Board can move forward for the sake of the children in the district.   
 
Father Lee Flores addressed the Board about the problems the Board has had.  He begged 
them to find peace and work out the issues for the sake of the students in the District.   
 
Mr. Brandon Schrecengost wanted to introduce the Board to a group that has recently 
formed in the District, the Lamar parents for advanced studies organization.  They are on a 
mission to encourage and support the GT and advanced placement students in the District.   
 
 
 

15



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 10 
 

Mr. Joe Greenwell addressed the Board about the practice pools and they are considering 
putting in diving boards, but said no one has seen the design schematics.   
 
Ms. Rachael Alvardo expressed her pleasure of the outcome of the dismissal of the charges 
of the false and damaging accusations made by other board members.  She feels these false 
claims should have never been made.  She feels it is evident to everyone they were bent on 
destroying the reputation of three prominent Hispanic leaders.  She said it is time for them to 
be censured, resign, and apologize for the pain and suffering they caused for their actions.   
 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. JUNE 14, 2016 REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
 

It was moved by Ms. Kaminski and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve the minutes of June 14, 2016 Regular Board Meeting.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

a. Meetings and Events 
 

Ms. Kaminski reported the Facilities Committee met and reported the status of projects 
going on throughout the District.   
 
Ms. Danziger reported that the Technology Committee did not meet but she reported the 
status of projects going on throughout the District.  She reported the status of the GROW 
Project and announced that graduation will be on August 19th.  She attended the 
Masonic dedication at Fulshear High School.   
 
Ms. Gonzales reported the Finance Committee met and received specific information 
about the reappraisal of properties due to the flooding. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen reported the Policy Committee met and reviewed Localized Policy 
Manual Update 104.  He attended along with other members of the Board the Summer 
Leadership Institute.  
 

8. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 
 
a. Meetings and Events 
 
b. Information for Immediate Attention 

    
9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED APPLICATION FOR OPTIONAL FLEXIBLE SCHOOL  

DAY PROGRAM (OFSDP) 
 
President Steenbergen opened the public hearing at 7:46 p.m.  Leslie Haack presented 
information on the Optional Flexible School Day Program (OFSDP).  The meeting was 
opened for questions and answers.  There being no discussion, the public hearing closed at 
7:49 p.m. 
 
 
 

 

16



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 11 
 
ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  10. A- 1 – 10. A- 5; 10. B-1 – 10. B-5; 10. B-7 – 
10. B-10; 10. B-15 – 10. B-19; 10. B-21 – 10. B-26; and 10. C-1 – 10. C-2 

 
It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
10. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 

 
10. A-1 Approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and the  
  Behavior Treatment and Training Center (BTTC), Texana Center 
 

Approved the Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and the 
Behavior Treatment and Training Center (BTTC), Texana Center for the 2016-2017 
school year, and authorized the Superintendent to execute the agreement.  (See 
inserted pages 11-A – 11-F.) 
 

10. A-2 Approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and  
  Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC) 
 

Approved the Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and the 
Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC) for the 2016-2017 school year, 
and authorized the Superintendent to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 
11-G – 11-L.) 
 

10. A-3 Approval for renewal of an optional flexible school day program 
 

Approved a continuation of the Optional Flexible School Day Program (OFSDP) that 
was established jointly between our high schools and 1621 Place.  (See inserted 
pages 11-M – 11-X.) 
 

10. A-4 Approval of the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 agreement for sports medicine  
  services between Lamar CISD and Memorial Hermann Health System 
 

Approved the agreement for sports medicine services between Lamar CISD and 
Memorial Hermann Health System (MHHS) for the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 school 
years.  (See inserted pages 11-Y – 11-EE.) 
 

10. A-5 Approval of the 2016-2017 agreement for Prevention Services 
 

Approved the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for a Prevention Specialist to 
provide evidence-based substance use prevention activities at selected campuses for 
the 2016-2017 school year, and authorized the Superintendent to execute the MOU.  
(See inserted pages 11-FF – 11-GG.) 

 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
10. B-1 Ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 
 

Ratified the quarterly investment report as submitted for the quarter ending May 31, 
2016.  (See inserted pages 11- HH – 11-MM.) 

 
10. B-1 Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 

 
Ratified the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 

17



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 12 
 

 
10. B-3 Approval of budget amendment requests 

 
Approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted pages 12-A – 12-
B.) 
 

10. B-4 Approval of Lamar CISD Investment Policy 
 

Reviewed and approved the District’s investment policy to comply with the Public 
Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 2256, Subchapter A).   (See 
inserted page 12-C.) 
 

10. B-5 Approval of amendment to contract for school resource officers 
 

Approved Amendment 5 to add one additional officer and renewed the contract with 
the City of Rosenberg Police Department for school resource officers to service the 
Lamar CISD schools for the 2016-2017 school year, and authorized the 
Superintendent to finalize the contract.  (See inserted page 12-D.) 
 

10. B-7 Approval of cafeteria meal price increases for 2016-2017 
 

Approved increasing meal prices for the 2016-2017 school year.   
 

10. B-8 Approval of Interlocal Agreement with Region 20 Education Service Center for 
 the TEXAS 20 Purchasing Cooperative 
 

Approved an Interlocal Agreement with Region 20 Education Service Center (ESC 
20) for the TEXAS 20 Purchasing Cooperative and authorized the Board President to 
execute the agreement and the Superintendent to execute the participation 
commitment.  (See inserted pages 12-E – 12-I.) 
 

10. B-9 Approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 
a. Campbell Elementary School 
b. Frost Elementary School 
c. George Ranch High School 
 
Approved donations to the District. 
 

10. B-10 Approval of Board Policy - Second Reading 
 

a. Localized Policy Manual Update 104 
b. DNA (LOCAL) Performance Appraisal - Evaluation of teachers 
c. DNB (LOCAL) Performance Appraisal - Evaluation of other professional 

employees 
 

Approved the second reading of Localized Policy Manual Update 104, DNA (LOCAL) 
Performance Appraisal – Evaluation of teachers, and DNB (LOCAL) Performance 
Appraisal – Evaluation of other professional employees.  (See inserted pages 12-J – 
12-U.) 
 
 
 
 

 

18



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 13 
 
10. B-15 Approval of change order #1 for pipe repairs for Pink Elementary School 
 

Approved change order #1 to Phil’s Plumbing for the pipe repairs at Pink Elementary 
School in the amount of $13,832, and authorized the Board President to execute the 
change order.   
 

10. B-16 Approval of CenterPoint Energy gas development fees for Bentley Elementary 
 School 
 

Approved CenterPoint Energy’s gas development fees for Bentley Elementary School 
in the amount of $50,786.60.   
 

10. B-17 Approval of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 142 agreements and 
 fees for Bentley Elementary School 
 

Approved the Application, Commitment Letter, Service Agreement and Rate Order of 
the Fort Bend MUD No. 142 for Bentley Elementary School and approve the payment 
in the amount of $314,644.93 for the tap fees.  (See inserted pages 13-A – 13-L.) 
 

10. B-18 Approval of CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions for Lindsey Elementary 
 School 
 

Approved the CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions package for the installation of 
underground electric service to Lindsey Elementary School and authorized the Board 
President to execute the agreement. (See inserted pages 13-M – 13-EE.) 
 

10. B-19 Approval of the procurement method for District-wide access control system 
 

Approved the procurement method and authorized the administration to utilize 
competitive sealed proposals as the construction procurement method with the 
evaluation criteria for the District-wide access control system 
 

10. B-21 Approval of Texas Education Agency Code Compliance Review for the new 
 Agriculture Facility #2 
 

Approved Winning Way Services for Texas Education Agency Code Compliance 
Review for the new Agricultural Facility #2 in the amount of $2,325.  (See inserted 
pages 13-FF – 13-II.) 
 

10. B-22 Approval of third party review and inspection for the new Agricultural Facility 
 #2 
 

Approved Winning Way Services for third party review and inspection for the new 
Agricultural Facility #2 in the amount of $1,350.  (See inserted pages 13-JJ – 13-MM.) 
 

10. B-23 Approval of water and waste water service connection fee and rate order with 
 Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 142 for the new Agricultural 
 Facility #2 
 

Approved a water and waste water agreement with Fort Bend County Municipal 
District (MUD) No. 142 for the new Agricultural Facility #2 in the amount of 
$43,638.23 and authorized the Board President to execute the agreement.   

 
 

19



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 14 
 
 
10. B-24 Approval of professional surveying services for the current support services 
 facility 
 

Approved Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc. for professional surveying services for 
the current support services facility in the amount of $16,000 and authorized the 
Board President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 14-A – 14-D.) 
 

10. B-25 Approval of move contractor for Fulshear High and Leaman Junior High 
 

Approved A-Rocket Moving and Storage, Inc. as the movers for Fulshear High School 
and Leaman Junior High in the amount of $2,984.   
 

10. B-26 Approval of student accident insurance for Lamar CISD 
 

Approved the Fidelity Security Life Insurance Company proposal presented by 
Greater East Texas Insurance Agency.  This bid will be awarded for one year with 
four automatic renewal year options.   
 

10. C GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 

10. C-1 Approval of appraisal calendar for the 2016-2017 school year 
 
Approved the appraisal calendars for the 2016 - 2017 school year as presented. 

 
10. C-2 Approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year 

 
Approved the 2016 – 2017 appraiser(s) who have recently become certified or are 
new to Lamar CISD. 

 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
10. B-6 Discussion and action on resolution authorizing the reappraisal of  
  flood/disaster area property within Lamar CISD 
 

It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of Trustees 
approve the resolution authorizing the reappraisal of flood/disaster area property 
within Lamar CISD.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked for a recap on the current effect this will have on the budget.  Ms. 
Ludwig said about a $3.1 million impact on the general fund and about $1 million on 
the debt service fund.  She said these numbers could be higher or lower.  There is 
about $150K in state funding that would be impacted as well.  She also said there 
could be a tax rate increase if they have to increase the I&S rate of the tax rate.  Ms. 
Ludwig said the reappraisal is for the 2016 values and people may not be finished 
with the repairs before January 1, 2017, which is the assessment date for the 2017 
values.  Therefore, this could be a two year impact.   
 
Ms. Kaminski said it was her understanding that some of the property will not go back 
to the original.  Ms. Ludwig said that is her understanding as well.   
 
The motion carried unanimously.  (See inserted pages 14-E – 14-F.) 

 
 

20



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 15 
 
 
10. B-11 Discussion of wine and beer permit at convenience store near school district  
  property 
 

It was moved by Ms. Kaminski and seconded by Dr. Harrell that the Board of 
Trustees approve the wine and beer permit at a convenience store near school 
district property.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked why they are voting if this is not in the 1,000’ zone.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said this is on the edge of the property not next to the school itself.   
 
Voting in favor of the motion:  Ms. Danziger, Mr. Steenbergen, Ms. Gonzales,  
Ms. Roberts, and Dr. Harrell  
 
Voting in opposition:  Ms. Kaminski 
 
The motion carried. 
 

10. B-12 Discussion of wine and beer permit at ballroom near school district property 
 

It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of Trustees 
approve the wine and beer permit at a ballroom near school district property. 
 
Ms. Kaminski said if this group sells the building or changed the operations, they 
would have to come back to the school district for a new wine and beer permit.   
 
Voting in favor of the motion:  Ms. Danziger, Mr. Steenbergen, Ms. Gonzales,  
Ms. Roberts, and Dr. Harrell  
 
Voting in opposition:  Ms. Kaminski 
 
The motion carried. 

 
10. B-13   Consider Designation of Texas Association of School Boards Delegate and  

Alternate to the 2016 Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) Fall  
Convention 
 
It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees designate Kay Danziger as the delegate and James Steenbergen as the 
alternate to the 2016 Texas Association of School Board fall convention.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

10. B-14   Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas  
  Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 
 
  No action taken. 
 
10. B-20   Consider approval of design development for the Terry High School baseball  
  complex renovations 
 

It was moved by Ms. Gonzales and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve the design development for the Terry High School baseball 
complex renovations, as presented by PBK architects.   
 

21



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 16 
 

Ms. Kaminski asked if it is necessary to do all the building of the concession stands 
and modifying the front stuff first instead of actually working on the fields that the kids 
are playing on.  Mr. Hoyt said they will be working on the dugouts and backstops in 
Phase 1.  There is some work on the fields that the maintenance department will work 
on this fall before the season begins.  Ms. Kaminski asked why the drainage was 
being left for last.  Mr. Hoyt said it is in Phase 2 and maintenance will handle it out of 
the general fund.  
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked if they had figures for the full four phases.  Mr. Hoyt said they 
need to move forward with the approval for Phase 1.  Phase 2 and 3 and new 
bleachers is roughly $1.2 and $1.5 million in addition to the $975K currently 
budgeted.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked if they could do all the work at once to save time and money.  Mr. 
Hoyt said they do not know if it would save time, they are working on trying to find the 
right balance of work.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked if we were over budget before the project started.  Mr. Hoyt said 
the scope of work included what is needed and wanted, but with a budget you have to 
work on the priorities.  The scope of work is estimated higher than the budget, the 
major piece they will do an alternate is the paving.  The goal is to stay within the 
budget.  Mr. Hoyt said they are approving the project scope.  Dr. Randle said the 
Board will have an opportunity to vote on the actual budget, they are approving just 
the design at this point. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
11. A-1 Budget Workshop 
 
11. A-2 Tax Collection Report 

 
11. A-3 Payments for Construction Projects 

 
11. A-4 Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 

 
11. A-5 Bond Update 

 
a. 2011 

 
b. 2014 

 
11. A-6 Transportation Update 

 
11. A-7 Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 

 
11. A-8 Naming of Facilities 
 
 
 

 

22



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 17 
 
11. A-9 Local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled 
 

Ms. Roberts feels the Board owes it to the patrons to address this item.  She would 
have considered this prior to the flood, unfortunately, since they are already going to 
be short this is not something she would consider now. 
 

11. A-10 Advise Texas Program 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 
e. Mid-year Superintendent Evaluation 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:16 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 

 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 

 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:47 p.m. 

 
11. A-1(a) Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional  
  personnel 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Roberts that the Board of 
Trustees approve personnel as presented with addendum.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   
 

  Employed 
 
  Momanyi, Judith  TBD   Assistant Principal 
         George Ranch High 
 
 
 
 

23



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 21, 2016 – page 18 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Discussion of HB4 regarding the PreK program and funding 
 
Update on HeadStart Kendleton 
 
Discussion and action of THS Baseball and Softball – cost of all phases and financial support 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 4th day of August 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 1:05 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 
2. ACTION ITEMS 
 
 

25



Minutes of Special Board Meeting (Workshop) August 4, 2016 – page 20 
 
 
2. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
2. A-1  Governance Team (Board and Superintendent) Team Building and Self- 

Assessment 
 
Ms. Kay Douglas, Board Development Consultant for the Texas Association of 
School Boards (TASB), presented the workshop on team building and self-
assessment. 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

 
2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 

of real property. 
 
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 
The Board did not convene in Closed Session. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

 

26



 

 

 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 4th day of August 2016, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session in Rosenberg, Fort Bend 
County, Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Interim Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2. OPENING OF MEETING 

A moment of silence was observed and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 

27



Minutes of Special Board Meeting August 4, 2016 – page 22 
 
 

 

3. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 

 
None 

 
4. ACTION ITEMS 
 
4. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
4. A-1  Budget Update 
 

a. 2016 – 2017 Budget Update 
 
Ms. Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer, provided an update on the 2016 – 2017 
budget with the following agenda: 

 
• 2016 – 2017 Budget Updates for: 

•   General Fund 
•   Debt Service Fund 
•   Child Nutrition Fund 

• Truth-in-Taxation Requirements 
•   Vote on Date of Meeting to Discuss Budget and Tax Rate 
•   Vote on Tax Rate to be published 
 

Ms. Gonzales arrived at 5:06 p.m. 
 

b. Approval of Date for Public Meeting to Discuss Budget and Proposed 
Tax Rate 
 
It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees approve August 18, 2016 as the date for the public meeting to discuss 
budget and the proposed tax rate.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
c. Approval of Proposed Tax Rate that will be Published in the Notice for the 

Public Meeting 
 
It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve the tax rate to be published in the newspaper in the Notice of 
Public Meeting to discuss budget and proposed tax rate.   

 
   M & O:        $1.04005 per $100 valuation 

 I & S:   $0.35 per $100 valuation 
 Total Tax Rate:      $1.39005 (same as current rate) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee 
or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

28



Minutes of Special Board Meeting August 4, 2016 – page 23 
 
 

 

a. Consider employment of Principal for Pink Elementary School 
b. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 

personnel 
c. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
d. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property. 

a. Land 
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/ complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 5:19 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 

 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 

 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 5:24 p.m. 
 
5. A-1(a) Employment of Principal for Pink Elementary School 
 

It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees approve Tiffany Foster as the Principal of Pink Elementary School.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  
 

5. A-1(b) Approval of Personnel Recommendations or Employment of Professional  
Personnel 
 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve personnel as presented with addendum.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Employed 
 
Cuellar, Christopher  TBD Assistant Principal   George Ranch High 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:25 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

29



 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2016-17 BUDGETS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider adoption of the 2016-17 General Operating, Food 
Service, and Debt Service Fund budgets, at the function level, in the following amounts, 
as presented: 
 
   General Operating Fund   $247,162,205.* 
   Food Service Fund    $  13,511,350. 
   Debt Service Fund    $  52,148,533. 
 

*Amount subject to change as final calculations are ongoing. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The budgets will be presented at the Public Hearing of August 18, 2016.  Budget 
approval is requested at the function level instead of the line item or object level. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Texas Education Code requires school districts to prepare a budget by August 20th 
each year.  The Texas Education Agency further requires that the budget be adopted by 
the Board of Trustees by August 31st of each year.  Prior to adoption, notice must be 
given, in a newspaper published within the District, of a meeting ten (10) days prior to 
the date of the meeting to allow any taxpayer of the District to attend and address the 
Board of Trustees regarding the proposed budget.  These requirements have been met. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
      Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

30



 
 
 
 

 
CONSIDER ADOPTION, BY ORDINANCE, THE 2016 TAX RATE 

FOR THE 2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider adoption, by ordinance, the 2016 tax rate.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
A tax rate of $1.39005 (per $100 valuation) is needed to fund the 2016-17 General Fund 
and Debt Service Fund budgets that are being presented to the Board of Trustees on 
August 18, 2016.  This rate is the same as the current 2015 tax rate. 
 
The Maintenance and Operations tax rate will be $1.04005 per one hundred dollars of 
valuation, and the Debt Service tax rate will be $0.35000 per one hundred dollars of 
valuation. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.A.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

31



 
 
ORDINANCE SETTING TAX RATE 
 
FOR THE TAX YEAR 2016 (SCHOOL YEAR 2016-17) 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  August 18, 2016 
 
 
On this day, we, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School 
District, hereby levy or set the tax rate for the District for the tax year 2016 at a total tax 
rate of $1.39005 per $100 valuation, to be assessed and collected by the duly specified 
assessor and collector as follows: 
 
$1.04005 for the purpose of maintenance and operations, and 
 
$0.35000 for the purpose of payment of principal, interest, and related costs on debts. 
 
Such taxes are to be assessed and collected by the tax officials designated by the 
District. 
 
 
 
 
IN CERTIFICATION THEREOF: 
 
 
Signed:  ______________________________ 
   President 
 
 
Attest: ________________________________ 
   Secretary 
 
 
 
Seal: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 2016 TAX YEAR APPRAISAL ROLL 
AND NEW PROPERTY VALUE 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the following documents submitted by 
Patsy Schultz, PCC, Fort Bend County Tax Assessor/Collector: 
 
  2016 Tax Year Value of New Property 
  2016 Tax Year Certified Appraisal Roll Totals 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Patsy Schultz, PCC, Fort Bend County Tax Assessor/Collector, requested that the above 
documents be recorded in the official minutes of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. A copy of the letter from Ms. Schultz requesting the receipt of information, 
as well as copies of the documents, is attached. 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE CERTIFICATION OF 2016 TAX YEAR 
ANTICIPATED COLLECTION RATE 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the anticipated tax collection rate of 
100% for the 2016 tax year. 
 
   
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Texas Property Tax Code requires that the tax assessor/collector certify the 
anticipated tax collection rate for the upcoming year. Patsy Schultz, PCC, has certified 
the rate for the 2016 tax year to be 100%. A copy of her letter certifying this rate is 
attached. 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

48



49



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION FOR COMMITMENT  

OF FUND BALANCE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2016 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
That the Board of Trustees approve a Resolution for the Commitment of Fund Balance, 
established according to the District’s fund balance policy and in compliance with GASB 54. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE:  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issues compliance guidelines for 
financial reporting. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions (GASB 54), prescribes the categories and terminology used to describe the 
components of fund balance.  Commitments and Assignments are a part of total fund balance.  
GASB 54 requires that the Board of Trustees formally commit fund balance reserves reflected 
in the financial statements.  The Board previously delegated the authority to assign other fund 
balance reserves to the Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
Committed Fund Balance includes amounts constrained by the Board for a specific purpose 
(major maintenance fund, future land purchases, construction projects, reserves for self-
funded insurance programs, etc.).  Official action must be taken by the Board of Trustees to 
“commit” fund balance.  This authority cannot be delegated.  Also, formal action is needed to 
impose additional commitments, or modify/remove existing commitments. 
 
The attached Resolution proposes that the following commitments are made to the fund 
balance of the General Fund: 
 

 Reserves for Self-Insurance 
o Health Plan – funds as needed to cover Plan deficits 
o Workers Compensation Plan – funds as needed to cover Plan deficits 

 Reserve for Food Service Program - $500,000 

 Reserve for Future Land Purchases to accommodate growth - $1,000,000 

 Reserve for Transfer to Debt Service Fund for tax rate control - $500,000 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
   Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.A.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

50



 

RESOLUTION FOR COMMITMENT OF FUND BALANCE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2016 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (“the District”) 

being convened in Regular Session within the boundaries of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District, on the 18th day of August, 2016, designates the Superintendent or 

Chief Financial Officer the responsibility for assigning outstanding encumbrances as of year-end 

from the unassigned fund balance and hereby resolves, orders, and directs that the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District commit the following portions of its August 31, 2016 

General Fund unassigned fund balance as follows: 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the District commits an amount to cover any outstanding deficits 

reflected in the Internal Service Funds for self-insured health or worker’s compensation. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the District commits $500,000 for any unforeseen deficits in the 

Food Service Fund. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the District commits $1,000,000 for the purchase of land to 

accommodate growth. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the District commits an amount of up to $500,000 to be transferred 

to the Debt Service Fund of the District to support an I&S tax rate of $0.35 per $100 valuation 

for the 2016 tax year. 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________ 

 James Steenbergen, President 

 Lamar CISD Board of Trustees 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 __________________________ 

 Kay Danziger, Secretary 

 Lamar CISD Board of Trustees 

51



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 2016-2017 COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the 2016-2017 Compensation Plan, as 
presented. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Funds will be included in the 2016-2017 budget, as per direction from the Board of 
Trustees, for each classification of employee outlined in the plan. The Compensation 
Plan reflects salary information for the 2016-2017 school year. 
 
   
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Each year the administration prepares the Compensation Plan for approval by the 
Board of Trustees. This plan represents all pay information including salary 
supplements and substitute pay. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
                         Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Chief Human Resources Officer 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision making.  

Financial reports and statements are the end products of the accounting process.  You 
will find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of July 2016 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.A.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

76



SCHEDULE OF JULY 2016 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of July total $23,650,815 and are shown below by category: 
 

 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 14,565,610         

614 Employee Benefits 1,043,484

621 Professional Services 27,338

623 Education Services Center 19,633

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 517,117

625 Utilities 732,196

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 25,606

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 428,051

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 73,825

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 73,599

633 Testing Materials 75,201

639 General Supplies and Materials 1,712,534

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 97,759

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 65,340

659 Other Debt Services Fees 750

661 Land Purchase and/or Improvements 11,890

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 3,467,568

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 697,506

129 Misc. Receivable/Alternative Certification Fees 7,547

211 Accounts Payable 1,950
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 3,109

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 3,202

Total 23,650,815  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of July 2016. The detailed check information 
is available upon request. 
 

                                        
   

77



LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.
GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

PERCENT
AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 136,493,777.00 137,687,796.00 1,194,019.00 100.9%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 96,167,598.00 80,104,666.00 (16,062,932.00) 83.3%
  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,745,000.00 1,976,118.00 231,118.00 113.2%

7900- OTHER RESOURCES - 719,593.00 719,593.00

TOTAL- REVENUES 234,406,375.00 220,488,173.00 (13,918,202.00) 94.1%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 196,019,071.00 171,152,868.00 24,866,203.00 87.3%
 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 21,494,846.00 15,814,861.00 5,679,985.00 73.6%
  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 14,157,978.00 8,388,992.00 5,768,986.00 59.3%
  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 4,413,401.00 3,330,831.00 1,082,570.00 75.5%
  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 4,030,616.00 2,742,928.00 1,287,688.00 68.1%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 240,115,912.00 201,430,480.00 38,685,432.00 83.9%

78



Lamar CISD
Local Investment Pools

as of July 31, 2016

BEGINNING TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL MONTH END
ACCOUNT NAME BALANCE DEPOSIT WITHDRAWAL INTEREST BALANCE

TexPool accounts are as follows:
Food Service 3,715,997.94 0.00 0.00 1,164.50 3,717,162.44
General Account 68,953,822.29 11,707,766.00 20,803,082.30 19,850.02 59,878,356.01
Capital Projects Series 2004 8.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.51
Health Insurance 420,676.84 1,369,748.97 1,300,000.00 232.97 490,658.78
Workmen's Comp 466,565.21 33,333.33 0.00 152.30 500,050.84
Property Tax 15,272,109.96 649,990.86 0.00 4,900.17 15,927,000.99
Vending Contract Sponsor 476,343.25 0.00 0.00 149.28 476,492.53
Deferred Compensation 2.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.55
Debt Service Series 2005 1,610,684.92 0.00 0.00 504.76 1,611,189.68
Capital Projects Series 2005 227,795.61 0.00 0.00 71.35 227,866.96
Student Activity Funds 45,962.00 0.00 0.00 14.38 45,976.38
Taylor Ray Donation Account 5,089.51 0.00 0.00 1.56 5,091.07
Capital Projects Series 2007 209,542.14 0.00 0.00 65.66 209,607.80
Common Threads Donation 53,342.06 0.00 0.00 16.71 53,358.77
Debt Service Series 2008 8,912.61 0.00 0.00 2.80 8,915.41
Capital Projects 2012A 2,565,328.22 0.00 37,621.55 799.97 2,528,506.64
Debt Service 2012A 1,494,221.23 0.00 0.00 468.26 1,494,689.49
Debt Service 2012B 237,129.77 0.00 0.00 74.30 237,204.07
Capital Projects 2014B 396.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 396.85
Debt Service 2014A 2,640,843.12 0.00 0.00 827.53 2,641,670.65
Debt Service 2014B 1,086,786.52 0.00 0.00 340.54 1,087,127.06
Debt Service 2013 200,843.68 0.00 0.00 62.90 200,906.58
Debt Service 2013A 485,678.31 0.00 0.00 152.18 485,830.49
Debt Service 2015 2,492,180.94 0.00 0.00 780.94 2,492,961.88
Capital Projects 2015 12,298,054.60 0.00 2,942,818.72 3,692.75 9,358,928.63
Debt Service 2016A 249,743.56 0.00 0.00 78.27 249,821.83

   
Lone Star Investment Pool Government Overnight Fund  
Capital Projects Fund 5,031.30 0.00 0.00 1.57 5,032.87
Workers' Comp 722,350.48 0.00 0.00 224.97 722,575.45
Property Tax Fund 32,226.24 0.00 0.00 10.04 32,236.28
General Fund 2,593,239.57 0.00 0.00 807.64 2,594,047.21
Food Service Fund 90,678.08 0.00 0.00 28.24 90,706.32
Debt Service Series 1996 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Project Series 1998 702.09 0.00 0.00 0.22 702.31
Debt Service Series 1990 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04
Debt Service Series 1999 2.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.43
Capital Project Series 1999 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Projects 2007 384.86 0.00 0.00 0.12 384.98
Capital Projects 2008 0.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.31
Capital Projects 2012A 42.97 0.00 0.00 0.01 42.98
Capital Projects 2014A 821,054.66 0.00 0.00 255.71 821,310.37
Capital Projects 2014B 17.04 0.00 0.00 0.01 17.05
Capital Projects 2015 26,680,260.57 0.00 0.00 8,309.31 26,688,569.88
Debt Service Series 2015 1,888,954.10 0.00 0.00 588.30 1,889,542.40

  
MBIA Texas CLASS Fund
General Account 15,410,898.24 0.00 0.00 8,358.41 15,419,256.65
Capital Project Series 1998 908.43 0.00 0.00 0.56 908.99
Capital Projects Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Debt Service Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Capital Projects Series 2012A 11,093,901.73 0.00 0.00 6,017.03 11,099,918.76
Capital Projects 2015 14,613,867.90 0.00 0.00 7,926.15 14,621,794.05
Debt Service 2015 945,994.51 0.00 0.00 513.09 946,507.60

  
TEXSTAR  
Capital Projects Series 2007 744.38 0.00 0.00 0.26 744.64
Debt Service Series 2008  13.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.86
Capital Projects Series 2008 1,352,071.59 0.00 97,902.75 433.51 1,254,602.35
Debt Service Series 2012A 40.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.45
Debt Service Series 2012B 1,706.14 0.00 0.00 0.58 1,706.72
Capital Projects Series 2012A 12.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.21
Debt Service 2013 4,519.83 0.00 0.00 1.53 4,521.36
Capital Projects 2014A 139.56 0.00 0.00 0.01 139.57
Capital Projects 2014B 188,168.03 0.00 0.00 61.70 188,229.73
Debt Service 2015 3,306,178.77 0.00 0.00 1,084.19 3,307,262.96
Capital Projects 2015 50,826,697.05 0.00 0.00 16,667.44 50,843,364.49

  
TEXAS TERM/DAILY Fund
Capital Projects Series 2007 1,007,490.24 0.00 0.00 383.76 1,007,874.00
Capital Projects Series 2008 141.09 0.00 0.00 0.05 141.14
Capital Projects Series 2012A 465,150.36 0.00 0.00 177.18 465,327.54
Capital Projects Series 2014A 8,341,091.86 0.00 679,535.72 3,077.45 7,664,633.59
Capital Projects Series 2014B 7,334,938.12 0.00 524,644.21 2,711.92 6,813,005.83
Debt Service 2015 1,890,133.34 0.00 0.00 719.96 1,890,853.30
Capital Projects 2015 29,196,912.96 0.00 528,964.30 10,958.11 28,678,906.77

  
  AVG. RATE CURRENT MONTH  

ACCOUNT TYPE OF RETURN EARNINGS
  

TEXPOOL ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.36 $34,404.10  
 

LONE STAR  ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.37 $10,226.14  
 

MBIA TEXAS CLASS ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.64 $22,815.24  
  

TEXSTAR ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.39 $18,249.22

TEXAS TERM/DAILY ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.44 $18,028.43

TOTAL CURRENT MONTH EARNINGS $103,723.13

EARNINGS 9-01-15 THRU 6-30-16  $765,062.65
  
TOTAL CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR EARNINGS $868,785.78

79



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests as 
attached. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Since the operating budget for Lamar CISD is adopted at the functional level, the 
proposed amendment requires school board approval because budgeted funds are 
being reallocated between functional categories or additional funds are needed.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The recommended adjustments move monies between functional categories or add 
additional funds to ensure legal compliance in budgeting. Legal compliance is achieved 
when no functional level categories are exceeded. 
 
This budget change is the result of an extensive review of the District’s budget position 
at July 31, 2016 and includes projections for anticipated expenditures during the month 
of August 2016. It is also intended to take into account year-end closing entries. A draft 
of the amendment is attached, and the final will be provided to board members at the 
meeting. 
 
All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by the School Board and 
recorded in the Board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability System Resource Guide, 
Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 15.0) 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                        Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer   
                        Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.A.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

80



 
The Business Office is requesting a budget amendment to adjust all functional 
categories at year end to ensure compliance with TEA regulations (by avoiding 
overages at functional level).   
 
Revenues: 
199-00 Local Revenues 1,250,000.00  
199-00 State Revenues 6,250,000.00 
 
Expenditures: 
199-11 Classroom Instruction 7,175,000.00 
199-12 Instr. Resources and Media Services 220,000.00 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development (100,000.00) 
199-21 Instructional Leadership 125,000.00 
199-23 School Leadership 1,500,000.00 
199-31 Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation 350,000.00 
199-32 Social Work Services 75,000.00 
199-33 Health Services 350,000.00 
199-34 Student Transportation 2,050,000.00 
199-35 Food Services 50,000.00 
199-36 Cocurricular/Extracurricular Activities 850,000.00 
199-41 General Administration (150,000.00) 
199-51 Plant Maintenance & Operations (300,000.00) 
199-52 Security and Monitoring Services (50,000.00) 
199-53 Data Processing Services (25,000.00) 
199-61 Community Services (100,000.00) 
199-81 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 250,000.00 
 
599-00 Local Revenues 500,000.00 
599-00 State Revenues 450,000.00 
599-00 Other Sources-Bond Transactions       169,088,191.00 
599-00 Other Uses-Bond Transactions            168,216,133.00 
599-71 Debt Service                                             1,450,000.00 
 
 
 

81



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF OFFER TO PURCHASE TAX RESALE PROPERTY 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the bid by Efrain Dimas, Jr. for $4,000 to acquire 
the one (1) tax resale property identified below. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The tax resale property is described as: 
 
Lot Thirty-Eight (38), Block One (1), Riverside Terrace, Section 1, an addition to the City 
of Rosenberg, located in Fort Bend County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described in Volume 405, Page 329 of the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas 
(Account #7610-01-001-0380-901). 
 
The property is owned by the City of Rosenberg as trustee for itself and for Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District and Fort Bend County.  In order for the 
property to be sold for less than the entire amount of taxes and costs owed, the formal 
approval of all taxing entities is required pursuant to Texas Property Tax Code Section 
34.05. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The total judgment amount owed to all taxing entities is $6,907.69 for tax years 1988 
through 2012, and the property was valued $10,030.00 at the time of Judgment.  The 
proposed distribution after reduction for all costs and post-judgment taxes owed is 
$1,177.78.  This amount will be distributed among the three taxing entities, of which 
Lamar CISD and Fort Bend County will receive $918.67 (78%). 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 9.A.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

82



83



84



85



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF VEHICLE PURCHASES  
FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS  

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of (3) Ford F-150 trucks from Helfman 
Ford in the amount of $68,561. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE:  
 
Staff requested pricing from multiple vendors that are on contract with purchasing 
cooperatives that Lamar CISD is a member of. These vehicles will be used to 
accommodate the growth in the District in the daily operations by Maintenance and 
Operations staff.  This purchase is funded through current Maintenance and Operations 
budgeted funds. 
 
Purchases from Helfman Ford are procured under the Fort Bend County Purchasing 
Interlocal Agreement, Contract 15-028.  Authority for such procurements is granted 
under Government Code, Title 7, Chapter 791 Interlocal Cooperation Contracts, 
Subchapter B and Subchapter C, and Local Government Code, Title 8, Chapter 271, 
Subchapter F, Section 271.101 and Section 271.102. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
These vehicles will be used to accommodate the growth by the Maintenance and 
Operations staff. 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Aaron Morgan, Director of Maintenance 
   Michele Leach, Purchasing & Materials Manager  
 
    
      
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

9.A.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

86



 
 
  

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE 2016-2017 AGREEMENT 
WITH MEMORIAL HERMANN COMMUNITY BENEFIT CORPORATION 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the service agreement with Memorial Hermann 
Benefit Corporation and authorize the Board President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
In 2002 the District entered into an agreement with Memorial Hermann to provide a 
school based health clinic. Memorial Hermann provides the clinic building and staff 
(nurse practitioner, LVN, social worker, receptionist, and part-time dietitian) for the 
Lamar Consolidated High School and Terry High School feeder patterns. All services 
will be free of charge to students in both feeder patterns. Services include health 
screenings, physicals, immunizations, treatment of acute minor illnesses and injuries, 
health education, nutritional counseling, individual and group counseling, case 
management, and expert medial consultation. The District provides the space and 
transportation to students when needed.  
 
 
Resource Person:   Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator 

Dr. Jennifer Roberts, Director of Student Support Services 
 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

9.A.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

87



Report to Lamar CISD for 2015-16 School Year Services  

Memorial Hermann Health Centers for Schools in collaboration with Lamar Consolidated Independent 

School District provides comprehensive health care services for uninsured, under-insured, and medically 

underserved students attending the Lamar and Terry feeder schools. Jackson Elementary students are 

also served by the Lamar Clinic. Services include: medical care- sick visits, immunizations, well child and 

sports physicals; mental health counseling- individual, family and groups; dental care- exams, cleaning, 

& restorative procedures; nutrition counseling; and assistance with Medicaid/CHIP applications, free 

vision exams & glasses, and referrals to specialists if needed. Following is a breakdown of the services 

provided to the students of the Lamar (Blue) & Terry (Red) tracks by the Lamar and Terry School-Based 

Clinics during the 2015-16 school year.  

Each school year clinic consent forms are sent home with students through their schools. Parents 

review, complete, and return the forms if they identify that their child may need the services because 

they do not have any medical insurance or may need the clinic as a back-up plan. 

Lamar Track Parents that signed consents for services: 4,414 

Terry Track Parents that signed consents for services:  2,411 

Medical Services 

Individual students receiving medical services at Lamar or Terry Clinic: 1,455 

Total medical visits at both clinics: 3,913     

% of students returning to class after their visit: 92.3% 

Breakdown of visits: 

Sick or injured 2,665 70% 

Sports Physical 474 13% 

Well child or teen (check-up) 234 6% 

Students Immunized 425 11% 

 
Sick/injured 

Immunized 

Sports Physicals 

Check-up 

88



Mental Health Counseling Services 

 

Individual students receiving mental health counseling services at Lamar or Terry Clinic: 173 

Total mental health counseling visits at both clinics: 1,355 

Breakdown of visits: 

Individual counseling 1,043 

Group counseling 91 

Family counseling 91 

Significant Others counseling 67 

Risk Assessment 63 

 

 

Mobile Dental Program Services 
 

 # of dental visits: 662 

# of new dental visits: 182 

# of recall dental visits: 481 

# dental procedures (cleaning, cavity filled, root canal, tooth extraction): 5,056  

Individual

Group

Family

 

77% 

 

7% 
7% 4% 

5% 

89



  Dietitian Services 

# students receiving dietitian services: 157 

Services include: Healthy Eating & Lifestyle Program (HELP) for overweight and obese youth; cholesterol 

program for children with high triglycerides and/or LDL (bad cholesterol) who do not also have a weight 

problem; and Other counseling (iron deficiency anemia, sports nutrition, underweight, nutrition 

evaluation of age and gender, pregnancy nutrition). 

 

New H.A.P.P.Y. Summer Boot Camp 

The first ‘Healthy Attitudes Promote Positive Youth’, or H.A.P.P.Y., Boot Camp for overweight or obese 

5th through 9th graders from the Lamar and Terry Health Centers occurred this June and July. Students 

were established patients with Lamar or Terry Clinic, met Body Mass Index requirements of greater than 

95th percentile for obesity or greater than 85th percentile for overweight with an accompanying risk 

factor, and demonstrated a minimum of ‘Contemplation” for Stage of Change. Nineteen youth were 

enrolled learning that getting fit can be fun, healthy meals and snacks can be yummy, and feeling good 

about oneself improves overall health. The morning camp lasted 10 days with each day including: 1 hour 

of exercise with a Certified Fitness Instructor, 45 minutes of nutrition class with a Register 

Dietitian/Certified Pediatric Weight Management Counselor, and 45 minutes of groups lead by a 

Licensed Clinical Social Worker. Student health progress was monitored by the medical staff. Heart 

healthy, low-fat, high protein, complex carbohydrate snacks and lunches were provided as youth were 

introduced to new foods.  Students and parents enthusiastically shared plans to integrate the healthy 

lifestyle changes learned and continue improving their health and fitness.  

 

2016 H.A.P.P.Y. Summer Boot Camp Students and Staff – Lamar & Terry Health Centers 

 

90



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT (THE LAMAR CLINIC) 

AND 
MEMORIAL HERMANN COMMUNITY BENEFIT CORPORATION 

(the “Agreement”) 
 
 
This Agreement for services is made by and between the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
(“LCISD”), 3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, Texas 77471, and Memorial Hermann Community Benefit 
Corporation (‘Memorial Hermann’) a non-profit corporation organized under the Laws of the State of Texas, 
with offices at 909 Frostwood, Suite 2.205, Houston, Texas 77024. 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire good health for children and families; 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire to promote adequate health services for disadvantaged 
students through establishing a school-based health center (the “Center”); 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire to improve outcomes for children and families; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 
 
              I .     The Program 
 
                    Memorial Hermann is a community-based, not-for-profit healthcare corporation.  Since 1907, 

the mission of the Memorial Hermann Health System and its subsidiaries such as Memorial 
Hermann has been to improve the health and well being of those who live in the communities 
they serve.   LCISD had long lobbied for a school based health center to serve its uninsured 
and under-insured student populations.  In 2003 Memorial Hermann Health Centers for 
Schools—Lamar Clinic began serving students facing barriers to healthcare at the Lamar 
feeder pattern schools.  (The students and sibling of students attending Jackson Elementary are 
also served.)   In 2012, a similar clinic began serving students at the Terry feeder pattern 
schools. 

 
 The Center operates year round.  School nurses coordinate appointments.  Center staff consists 

of a nurse practitioner and a licensed vocational nurse with medical supervision by a 
pediatrician or family practitioner.  A licensed clinical social worker, receptionist, and part-
time dietitian complete the staffing model.   Services include health screenings, physicals, 
immunizations, treatment of acute minor illnesses and injuries, family planning services, some 
chronic care, laboratory work and prescribed pharmaceuticals associated with the visit, health 
education, nutritional counseling, individual and group counseling, case management and 
expert medical consultation. 

  
All services are provided at no cost to students or families. Medicaid and Medicaid Managed 
Care are billed for eligible/enrolled students incurring covered services.  No cash is collected 
at the center site. 

91



 
 A dentist and dental assistant provide screenings, cleanings, fillings, sealants, simple 

extractions, and education on a mobile dental van.  They are at each clinic site for a month at a 
time, approximately four months a year.  The priority for service is students facing barriers to 
oral healthcare access. 

 
 Referrals for services requiring more extensive medical care are made to public providers and 

private physicians who accept Medicaid and CHIP eligible clients.   The center strives to direct 
children with Medicaid, CHIP, or private insurance to their primary care provider and to 
encourage families with the potential of insurance to apply.  To assist this effort a part-time 
Navigator has been added to the team to work closely with the clinic staff. 
 

 
              2.     Scope of Services 
 
                     Services to be provided by Memorial Hermann: 
 

• Pay the costs for building, installing, removing, insuring, equipping, and maintaining the 
Center and mobile dental van. The parties understand that in the event that this Agreement 
is terminated, the modular buildings and equipment purchased by Memorial Hermann will 
remain Memorial Hermann property.   

 
• Provide or arrange for appropriate clinical and administrative personnel to perform the 

program's scope of services 
 

• Cooperate in case management in a collaborative environment with the school nurses, 
counselors and social workers 

 
• Pay salary, benefits, and liability insurance for Memorial Hermann employed staff 

 
• Provide evidence of insurance to LCISD 

 
• Provide or arrange for medical services to include: health education, prevention and 

screening; physicals; immunizations; treatment of minor acute illnesses and injuries; 
laboratory testing and prescribed pharmaceuticals associated with the visit; nutritional 
counseling; family planning services; referral  and follow-up.  Social work services to 
include: individual and group counseling and case management.  Dental services to include:  
screenings, cleanings, fillings, sealants, simple extractions, and education.   

 
• Provide reports to LCISD on the number of students and families served 

 
• Dispose of biochemical waste material 

 
                     Services to be provided by LCISD: 
 

• Make available, as a key contact, the supervisor of school nurses 

92



 
• Provide appropriate operational land to Memorial Hermann, at no charge, for the location of 

the modular clinics and mobile dental van 
 

• Construct and maintain ramps for wheel chair access to the Center and provide canopy (if 
necessary) for coverage 

 
• Furnish the electric, gas, sanitary sewer, and water for operating the Center and dental van 

 
• Provide bus transportation between elementary, middle, and junior high schools and the 

Center during the school year 
 

• Refer students, with parental consent, to the Center as appropriate (typically nurses refer for 
medical services; counselors and social workers for counseling services).  

 
• Provide in-services on LCISD procedures for Center staff 

 
• Provide Center housekeeping services with the exception of biochemical waste 

 
• Provide security to the Center consistent with the rest of the grounds 

 
• Provide for clinic staff to have access to the clinic during school holidays 

 
• Provide referrals, with parental consent, of individual students 
 
• Cooperate with Memorial Hermann regarding the necessary security and protection of on-

site drugs 
 

• Cooperate in case management in a collaborative environment between the Center staff, 
school nurses, counselors, and social workers 

 
            3      Term of Agreement 

 
This Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2016, and continue through August 31, 2017.  
This Agreement may be terminated by either party as provided in the termination section of this 
Agreement. 

 
 
            4.     Termination of Agreement 
 

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause upon 
providing thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party.  Neither party shall incur 
liability for termination of this Agreement if in compliance with this provision. 

 
             
 

93



 5.     Reports 
 
                   Memorial Hermann agrees to furnish all information, documentation, and reports reasonably 

requested by LCISD pertaining to services performed incident to this Agreement.  Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School district reserves the right to perform an evaluation of these 
services in order to determine the benefits conferred upon LCISD.  LCISD agrees to furnish 
student information requested by Memorial Hermann on student grades, absenteeism, and 
conduct so that Memorial Hermann can measure outcomes to determine the benefits conferred. 

 
            6.     Relationship of Parties 
 

Neither Memorial Hermann nor any employee or independent contractor utilized by Memorial 
Hermann shall be deemed for any purpose to be an employee or agent of LCISD.  This 
Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, create a joint venture, joint enterprise, or 
business partnership under Texas Law.  Memorial Hermann assumes full responsibility for the 
actions of its employed personnel while performing any services incident to this Agreement and 
shall remain solely responsible for their supervision, daily direction and control, payment of 
salary (including withholding of income taxes and social security), injured employee or 
disability benefits and like requirements and obligations. 

 
           7.    No Waiver of Immunity 

 
Neither party relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of itself, its directors, trustees, 
officers, employees, or agents as a result of the execution of this Agreement and performance of 
the functions or obligations described herein. 

 
           8.    Governing Law 
 
                  This Agreement is made in Texas and shall be construed, interpreted, and governed by the 
                  laws of such state.  The parties consent to the jurisdiction and venue of the courts of 
                  Harris County, Texas for any action under this Agreement. 
 
           9.    Triplicate Originals 
 
                  This Agreement is executed in three originals, each of which shall have the full force and 
                  effect of but one Agreement and each of which shall constitute but one and the same 
                  instrument. 
 
          10.    No Assignment 

 
        No Assignment of this Agreement, or of any duty or obligation of performance hereunder, 
        shall be made in whole or in part by either party without the prior written consent of the other 

party. 
 
           11.   Authorization of Agreement 
 

94



 Each party represents and warrants to the other that the execution of this Agreement has 
 been duly authorized, and that this agreement constitutes a valid and enforceable 
 obligation of such party according to its terms.  LCISD agrees that Memorial Hermann may carry 
out some of its obligations hereunder via its parent company, Memorial Hermann Healthcare 
System, and that said company shall have all the rights and obligations of Memorial Hermann. 

 
           12.   Notice 
 
                  Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing 
                  and shall be duly served when it shall be hand-delivered to the addressees set out below, 
                  or shall have been deposited duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a 
                  United States Post Office addressed to the other party at the following addresses: 
 
                          To Memorial Hermann-      
 
                               Memorial Hermann Community Benefit Corporation 
                               Attn: Ms. Deborah Ganelin 
                               909 Frostwood, Suite 2.205 
                               Houston, Texas 77024 
 
                      To LCISD- 
 
                                Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
                                Superintendent of Schools 
                                3911 Avenue I 
                                Rosenberg, Texas 774471 
 
                    Any party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten days written 
                    notice in the manner provided above. 
 
            13.   Section Headings 
 
                    The headings of sections contained in this Agreement are for convenience only, and they 
                    shall not, expressly or by implication, limit, define, extend, or construe the terms or 
                    provisions of the sections of this Agreement. 
 
            14.   Student Records 

 
To the extent that Memorial Hermann will come into possession of student records incidental to 
this Agreement, Memorial Hermann agrees to comply with all requirements of the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  In the event that LCISD is required to furnish information 
of records, pursuant to the Open Records Act, Memorial Hermann shall furnish all such 
information and records to LCISD, and LCISD shall have the right to release such information 
and records, subject to patient privacy laws and state law. 

 
            

95



 
 

 15.   Complete Understanding 
 

This Agreement shall constitute the complete understanding of Memorial Hermann and LCISD 
and may not be modified in any manner without the express written consent of both parties. 

 
 
            16.   No Waiver 
 
                    No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be a 
                    waiver of any breach of any other provision.  No delay in acting with regard to any breach 
                    of any provision shall be construed to be a waiver of such breach. 
 
 

17. Force Majeure 
 

Neither party shall be responsible to the other for failure to perform its responsibilities where 
such failure is due to causes beyond the reasonable control of the party including, but not limited 
to, civil disasters, labor strikes, war or civil insurrection, terrorism, and fire or other casualty. 

 
           
 
 

 [Signatures are on the following page]

96



 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, LCISD AND MEMORIAL HERMANN have executed this Agreement on 
this _______ day of _____________________2016.  
 

 
 MEMORIAL HERMANN LAMAR CONSOLIDATED 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 _________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Carol Paret, Chief                    Date    James Steenbergen, President            Date 
 Community Health Officer     Board of Education 
          
 
 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Kay Danziger, Secretary           Date 
         Board of Education 
 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Thomas Randle, Ed.D.              Date 
         Superintendent of Schools 
 
 

 
Approved as to Legal Form Only 
On Behalf of MHHS: 
 
By:  /s/     
   Frank J. Collura, DDS, JD 
Date: June 29, 2016 
 
 

97



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT (THE TERRY CLINIC) 

AND 
MEMORIAL HERMANN COMMUNITY BENEFIT CORPORATION 

(the “Agreement”) 
 
 
This Agreement for services is made by and between the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
(“LCISD”), 3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, Texas 77471, and Memorial Hermann Community Benefit 
Corporation (‘Memorial Hermann’) a non-profit corporation organized under the Laws of the State of Texas, 
with offices at 909 Frostwood, Suite 2.205, Houston, Texas 77024. 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire good health for children and families; 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire to promote adequate health services for disadvantaged 
students through establishing a school-based health center (the “Center”); 
 
WHEREAS, LCISD and Memorial Hermann desire to improve outcomes for children and families; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 
 
              I .     The Program 
 
                    Memorial Hermann is a community-based, not-for-profit healthcare corporation.  Since 1907, 

the mission of the Memorial Hermann Health System and its subsidiaries such as Memorial 
Hermann has been to improve the health and well being of those who live in the communities 
they serve.   LCISD had long lobbied for a school based health center to serve its uninsured 
and under-insured student populations.  Since 2003 Memorial Hermann Health Centers for 
Schools—Lamar Clinic has served students facing barriers to healthcare at the Lamar feeder 
pattern schools.  In 2012 Memorial Hermann Health Centers for Schools—Terry Clinic began 
serving uninsured and Medicaid students, as well as insured students facing barriers to health 
care within the Terry feeder pattern schools. 

 
 The Center operates year round.  School nurses coordinate appointments.  Center staff consists 

of a nurse practitioner and a licensed vocational nurse with medical supervision by a 
pediatrician or family practitioner.  A licensed clinical social worker, receptionist, and part-
time dietitian complete the staffing model.   Services include health screenings, physicals, 
immunizations, treatment of acute minor illnesses and injuries, family planning services, some 
chronic care, laboratory work and prescribed pharmaceuticals associated with the visit, health 
education, nutritional counseling, individual and group counseling, case management and 
expert medical consultation. 

  
All services are provided at no cost to students or families. Medicaid and Medicaid Managed 
Care are billed for eligible/enrolled students incurring covered services.  No cash is collected 
at the center site, and families are not billed. 

98



 
 A dentist and dental assistant provide screenings, cleanings, fillings, sealants, simple 

extractions, and education on a mobile dental van.  They are at each clinic site for a month at a 
time, approximately four months a year.  The priority for service is students facing barriers to 
oral healthcare access. 

 
 Referrals for services requiring more extensive medical care are made to public providers and 

private physicians who accept Medicaid and CHIP eligible clients.   The center strives to direct 
children with Medicaid, CHIP, or private insurance to their primary care provider and to 
encourage families with the potential of insurance to apply.  To assist this effort a part-time 
Navigator has been added to the team to work closely with the clinic staff. 
 

 
              2.     Scope of Services 
 
                     Services to be provided by Memorial Hermann: 
 

• Pay the costs for building, installing, removing, insuring, equipping, and maintaining the 
Center and mobile dental van. The parties understand that in the event that this Agreement 
is terminated, the modular buildings and equipment purchased by Memorial Hermann will 
remain Memorial Hermann property.   

 
• Provide or arrange for appropriate clinical and administrative personnel to perform the 

program's scope of services 
 

• Cooperate in case management in a collaborative environment with the school nurses, 
counselors and social workers 

 
• Pay salary, benefits, and liability insurance for Memorial Hermann employed staff 

 
• Provide evidence of insurance to LCISD 

 
• Provide or arrange for medical services to include: health education, prevention and 

screening; physicals; immunizations; treatment of minor acute illnesses and injuries; 
laboratory testing and prescribed pharmaceuticals associated with the visit; nutritional 
counseling; family planning services; referral  and follow-up.  Social work services to 
include: individual and group counseling and case management.  Dental services to include:  
screenings, cleanings, fillings, sealants, simple extractions, and education.   

 
• Provide reports to LCISD on the number of students and families served 

 
• Dispose of biochemical waste material 

 
                     Services to be provided by LCISD: 
 

• Make available, as a key contact, the supervisor of school nurses 

99



 
• Provide appropriate operational land to Memorial Hermann, at no charge, for the location of 

the modular clinics and mobile dental van 
 

• Construct and maintain ramps for wheel chair access to the Center and provide canopy (if 
necessary) for coverage 

 
• Furnish the electric, gas, sanitary sewer, and water for operating the Center and dental van 

 
• Provide bus transportation between elementary, middle, and junior high schools and the 

Center during the school year 
 

• Refer students, with parental consent, to the Center as appropriate (typically nurses refer for 
medical services; counselors and social workers for counseling services).  

 
• Provide in-services on LCISD procedures for Center staff 

 
• Provide Center housekeeping services with the exception of biochemical waste 

 
• Provide security to the Center consistent with the rest of the grounds 

 
• Provide for clinic staff to have access to the clinic during school holidays 

 
• Provide referrals, with parental consent, of individual students 
 
• Cooperate with Memorial Hermann regarding the necessary security and protection of on-

site drugs 
 

• Cooperate in case management in a collaborative environment between the Center staff, 
school nurses, counselors, and social workers 

 
            3      Term of Agreement 

 
This Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2016, and continue through August 31, 2017.  
This Agreement may be terminated by either party as provided in the termination section of this 
Agreement. 

 
            4.     Termination of Agreement 
 

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause upon 
providing thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party.  Neither party shall incur 
liability for termination of this Agreement if in compliance with this provision. 

 
            
 
 

100



  5.     Reports 
 
                   Memorial Hermann agrees to furnish all information, documentation, and reports reasonably 

requested by LCISD pertaining to services performed incident to this Agreement.  Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School district reserves the right to perform an evaluation of these 
services in order to determine the benefits conferred upon LCISD.  LCISD agrees to furnish 
student information requested by Memorial Hermann on student grades, absenteeism, and 
conduct so that Memorial Hermann can measure outcomes to determine the benefits conferred. 

 
            6.     Relationship of Parties 
 

Neither Memorial Hermann nor any employee or independent contractor utilized by Memorial 
Hermann shall be deemed for any purpose to be an employee or agent of LCISD.  This 
Agreement does not, and shall not be construed to, create a joint venture, joint enterprise, or 
business partnership under Texas Law.  Memorial Hermann assumes full responsibility for the 
actions of its employed personnel while performing any services incident to this Agreement and 
shall remain solely responsible for their supervision, daily direction and control, payment of 
salary (including withholding of income taxes and social security), injured employee or 
disability benefits and like requirements and obligations. 

 
           7.    No Waiver of Immunity 

 
Neither party relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of itself, its directors, trustees, 
officers, employees, or agents as a result of the execution of this Agreement and performance of 
the functions or obligations described herein. 

 
           8.    Governing Law 
 
                  This Agreement is made in Texas and shall be construed, interpreted, and governed by the 
                  laws of such state.  The parties consent to the jurisdiction and venue of the courts of 
                  Harris County, Texas for any action under this Agreement. 
 
           9.    Triplicate Originals 
 
                  This Agreement is executed in three originals, each of which shall have the full force and 
                  effect of but one Agreement and each of which shall constitute but one and the same 
                  instrument. 
 
          10.    No Assignment 

 
        No Assignment of this Agreement, or of any duty or obligation of performance hereunder, 
        shall be made in whole or in part by either party without the prior written consent of the other 

party. 
 
            
 

101



 11.   Authorization of Agreement 
 

 Each party represents and warrants to the other that the execution of this Agreement has 
 been duly authorized, and that this agreement constitutes a valid and enforceable 
 obligation of such party according to its terms.  LCISD agrees that Memorial Hermann may carry 
out some of its obligations hereunder via its parent company, Memorial Hermann Healthcare 
System, and that said company shall have all the rights and obligations of Memorial Hermann. 

 
           12.   Notice 
 
                  Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing 
                  and shall be duly served when it shall be hand-delivered to the addressees set out below, 
                  or shall have been deposited duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a 
                  United States Post Office addressed to the other party at the following addresses: 
 
                          To Memorial Hermann-      
 
                               Memorial Hermann Community Benefit Corporation 
                               Attn: Ms. Deborah Ganelin 
                               909 Frostwood, Suite 2.205 
                               Houston, Texas 77024 
 
                      To LCISD- 
 
                                Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
                                Superintendent of Schools 
                                3911 Avenue I 
                                Rosenberg, Texas 774471 
 
                    Any party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten days written 
                    notice in the manner provided above. 
 
            13.   Section Headings 
 
                    The headings of sections contained in this Agreement are for convenience only, and they 
                    shall not, expressly or by implication, limit, define, extend, or construe the terms or 
                    provisions of the sections of this Agreement. 
 
            14.   Student Records 

 
To the extent that Memorial Hermann will come into possession of student records incidental to 
this Agreement, Memorial Hermann agrees to comply with all requirements of the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  In the event that LCISD is required to furnish information 
of records, pursuant to the Open Records Act, Memorial Hermann shall furnish all such 
information and records to LCISD, and LCISD shall have the right to release such information 
and records, subject to patient privacy laws and state law. 

102



         
 

 15.   Complete Understanding 
 

This Agreement shall constitute the complete understanding of Memorial Hermann and LCISD 
and may not be modified in any manner without the express written consent of both parties. 

 
 
            16.   No Waiver 
 
                    No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be a 
                    waiver of any breach of any other provision.  No delay in acting with regard to any breach 
                    of any provision shall be construed to be a waiver of such breach. 
 
 

17. Force Majeure 
 

Neither party shall be responsible to the other for failure to perform its responsibilities where 
such failure is due to causes beyond the reasonable control of the party including, but not limited 
to, civil disasters, labor strikes, war or civil insurrection, terrorism, and fire or other casualty. 

 
           
 
 

 [Signatures are on the following page]

103



 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, LCISD AND MEMORIAL HERMANN have executed this Agreement on 
this _______ day of _____________________2016.  
 

 
   MEMORIAL HERMANN LAMAR CONSOLIDATED 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 _________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Carol Paret,  Chief                    Date    James Steenbergen, President            Date 
 Community Health Officer     Board of Education 
          
 
 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Kay Danziger, Secretary           Date 
         Board of Education 
 
 
 
         _________________________________ 
         Thomas Randle, Ed.D.              Date 
         Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form Only 
On Behalf of MHHS: 
 
By:  /s/     

   Frank J. Collura, DDS, JD 
Date: June 29, 2016 

 

104



 
           
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTATION AND PROCESS FOR NAMING 

SUPERINTENDENT DESIGNEES FOR AUTOMATED TEXAS EDUCATION 

AGENCY SECURE ENVIRONMENT (TEASE) USERS 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Board of Trustees authorize Jill Ludwig, Leslie Haack, and Linda Lane to act as 
Superintendent designees for approving staff requests for access to one or more TEA 
web applications accessed through the Texas Education Agency Secure Environment 
(TEASE). 
 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 

 
A recent decision by the Texas Education Agency legal staff implements a new 
requirement for documenting designee approval.  This is a requirement for all 
applications containing confidential data. The district will be required to apply for grants 
made available through the Governor’s Excellence Award Program – Texas Educators 
Excellence Grant.  The grants are to provide a system of financial incentives to award 
educators who demonstrate the ability to achieve higher levels of student academic 
performance. 
 

 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

 
Superintendent designees will be made on a calendar year basis and designee 
accounts will be disabled one calendar year from board approval date (or sooner if a 
request to revoke a designee account is received in the interim). 

 

 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

9.A.#12. – PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

105



 
 
  
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
  
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming September 2016 as 
“Childhood Cancer Awareness Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Families, caregivers, charities, organizations and research groups across the United States 
observe September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month. Every year, approximately 
16,000 children in the U.S. under the age of 21 are diagnosed with cancer; 1/4 of them will not 
survive the disease. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval:      
 
 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent of Schools 

9.A.#13a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

106



 

Resolution 
 

 Whereas, in the United States almost 16,000 children under the age of 

21 are diagnosed with cancer every year; approximately one quarter of 

whom will not survive the disease; and 

 

Whereas, cancer is the leading cause of death by disease among Texas 

children between infancy and age 19; and 

 

Whereas, an estimated 1,600 children aged 19 and younger in Texas 

were diagnosed with cancer; and 

 

Whereas, in 2014 more than 200 children died from cancer in Texas 

before their 20th birthday; and 

 

Whereas, the objective of Childhood Cancer Awareness Month is to 

put a spotlight on the types of cancer that largely affect children, survivorship 

issues and help raise funds for research and family support;  

  

Therefore, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declares September, 2016, as 

 

Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in Lamar CISD 
 

and encourages members of our community to reaffirm their commitment to 

fighting this terrible disease. 

 

August 18, 2016 
 

________________________ 

                   James Steenbergen, President 

  

___________________________ 

                   Kay Danziger, Secretary 

 
 

107



  
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING  
HISPANIC HERITAGE MONTH 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming September 15 – 
October 15, 2016 as “Hispanic Heritage Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
September 15 – October 15 was designated by presidential proclamation as the month to 
celebrate the rich heritage of Hispanic Americans and the many contributions they have made 
to American culture. 
 
Hispanic Heritage Month begins on September 15, the anniversary of independence for five 
Latin American countries—Costa Rica, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, and Nicaragua. In 
addition, Mexico declared its independence on September 16 and Chile on September 18. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval:      
 
 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent of Schools 

9.A.#13b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

108



 

Resolution 
 

 

 Whereas, September 15 is the Anniversary of Independence Day for 

five Latin American Countries, and is celebrated as a major cultural event by 

Hispanics in this country and across the Americas; and 

 

 Whereas, it is appropriate at this time to recognize the rich heritage 

and the significant contributions to American life by persons of Hispanic 

ancestry; and 

 

 Whereas, schools are in a unique position to share an appreciation of 

Hispanics among children from all races and backgrounds; and 

 

 Whereas, Lamar CISD schools commemorate Hispanic Heritage Month 

with special activities and observances; 

 

 Therefore, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declares September 15 – October 15, 2016, as 

 

Hispanic Heritage Month in Lamar CISD 
 

and encourages members of our community to share in this celebration of 

our diverse American heritage. 

 

August 18, 2016 
 

________________________ 

                   James Steenbergen, President 

  

___________________________ 

                   Kay Danziger, Secretary 

 
 

109



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DONATIONS TO THE DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RECOMMEDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve donations to the District. 
 

 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Policy CDC (Local) states that the Board of Trustees must approve any donation with a 
value in excess of $2,500. 
 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
 
The Bridge Fellowship donated $6,641 to Common Threads.   
 
John and Randolph Foster Band Parents, Inc. donated $6,400 to purchase vinyl wrap for 
trailer used to transport band equipment at Foster High School. 
 
Friends of Lamar donated $4,000 for outdoor classroom and four athletic mats at Lamar 
Junior High School. 
 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.A.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

110



  
 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION FOR THE FINAL SCOPE OF WORK  
AND BUDGET INCREASE FOR THE  

TERRY HIGH SCHOOL BASEBALL COMPLEX RENOVATIONS 

 
 

 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Board of Trustees approved the design development of the Terry High baseball 
complex renovations at the July 2016 regular meeting and requested additional information 
on performing additional work and potential available funds.  
 
The proposed scope of work and sequence of development is attached and describes the 
recommended phasing of the work and a listing of additional scope of work that would be 
added to the project, including expanding the restroom facilities, bleacher replacement, 
softball field lighting and outfield fencing.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

111



 

1 

 

August 9, 2016 

 
Terry High School Baseball Complex 

Proposed Scope of Work and Sequence of Development 
 

Background 
 
The Lamar Consolidated ISD Board of Trustees approved the Design Development of 
the Terry High School baseball complex renovations at the July 2016 regular meeting 
and requested  information on  additional scope and cost be presented at the August 
Board meeting. 
 
The Trustees also requested information from the District Staff on the availability of 
surplus bond funds that could be used for potential additional scope of work. 
 
Schedule Considerations 
 
The start of the 2016/2017 High School Baseball Season is the end of January 2017 
and the construction of the new dugouts, softball bull pen, backstops and netting must 
be completed before the start of the season. This work is planned to be bid and 
awarded by the September 2016 Board Meeting to meet the required completion 
schedule. 
 
The construction of the remaining work is expected to take longer to complete and 
provisions have been made to allow the ticket/restroom/concessions building to be 
completed after the season is underway. An alternate bid item for new accessible 
parking and paving of the public areas would be coordinated with the athletics schedule 
to allow for safe access during construction.  
 
We have outlined a proposed scope of work to provide additional improvements to the 
baseball complex and recommend that this work be bid separately from Phase 1. 
Separating the work into two phases will allow time to complete design of the final 
scope and to coordinate the work minimizing disruption to the facilities. 
 
Proposed Scope of Work 
 

Phase 1 – Original Scope - First Bid  
(Construction Fall 2016 to End of January 2017) 

 Two (2) New Softball Dugouts 

 New Softball Backstop Masonry Wall with 30' Netting 

 New Softball Bull Pen 

 Two (2) New Baseball Dugouts 

 New Baseball Backstop Masonry Wall with 60' Netting 
 

  

112



 

2 

 

Maintenance & Operations Scope 

 Refurbish existing restroom building plumbing & finishes  

 (Construction Fall 2016) 
o This work will provide quality public restroom facilities by the start of the 

baseball season and will remain useable for athletes and other personnel 
for the future. 

o Baseball infield and outfield are being evaluated by the Grounds 
Department to confirm if repairs are required. 

 
 
Phase 2 – Original Scope - Second Bid 
(Construction Spring 2017 to Summer 2017) 
 

 New Concession/Restroom/Ticket Booth Building (Recommend increasing 
Restroom Fixtures from original 2 to 5 each for Men & Women) 

 New HC and Reserve Parking 

 New Pedestrian Entry Paving & Fencing 

 New Elevated Softball Press Box 

 Courtyard Site Paving  
 
Phase 2 – Additional Scope - Second Bid 

 Baseball Field Bleacher Replacement w/ new elevated Press Box 

 Softball Field Bleacher Replacement  

 Softball Field Lighting – Replace wood poles & lamps 

 Baseball Outfield Fencing  

 Softball Outfield Fencing  
 
Work discussed but not planned in this proposal 

 Baseball Field Lighting – Metal poles are existing. Lamp replacement may need 
to be replaced in future.  

 Baseball Field improvements – Condition of field being evaluated 
 

 
Budget Requirements 

 
2014 Bond Original Budget   $  975,000 
 
Phase 2 Additional Scope    $1,425,000  
 

Revised Total Project Budget  $2,400,000 
 
The source of available funds for this work is from 2011 Bond surplus funds. 

113



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GEOTECHNICAL STUDY FOR THE 
PRACTICE POOL AT FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for the geotechnical study for the 
practice pool at Foster High School in the amount of $5,500 and authorize the Board 
President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services are a professional service that the District must 
contract directly.  These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services will generate reports that provide design criteria the 
architect needs to complete the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in 
the design and construction of the practice pool at Foster High School. 
 
  
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#16a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GEOTECHNICAL STUDY FOR THE 
PRACTICE POOL AT FULSHEAR HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for the geotechnical study for the 
practice pool at Fulshear High School in the amount of $5,500 and authorize the Board 
President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services are a professional service that the District must 
contract directly.  These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services will generate reports that provide design criteria the 
architect needs to complete the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in 
the design and construction of the practice pool at Fulshear High School. 
 
   
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#16b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

121



122



123



124



125



126



127



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GEOTECHNICAL STUDY FOR THE 
PRACTICE POOL AT GEORGE RANCH HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for the geotechnical study for the 
practice pool at George Ranch High School in the amount of $5,400 and authorize the 
Board President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services are a professional service that the District must 
contract directly.  These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services will generate reports that provide design criteria the 
architect needs to complete the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in 
the design and construction of the practice pool at George Ranch High School. 
 
  
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#16c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

128



129



130



131



132



133



134



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES 

FOR THE PRACTICE POOL AT FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc. A Jones & 
Carter Company for professional surveying services for the practice pool at Foster High 
School in the amount of $4,500 and authorize the Board President to execute the 
agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Professional surveying services is a professional service that the District must contract 
directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Professional surveying services will include survey of existing grading, existing 
structures and underground utilities.  This work is crucial in the design and construction 
for the practice pool at Foster High School. 
 
  
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.A.#17a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

135



136



137



138



139



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES 

FOR THE PRACTICE POOL AT FULSHEAR HIGH SCHOOL 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc. A Jones & 
Carter Company for professional surveying services for the practice pool at Fulshear 
High School in the amount of $4,500 and authorize the Board President to execute the 
agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Professional surveying services is a professional service that the District must contract 
directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Professional surveying services will include survey of existing grading, existing 
structures and underground utilities.  This work is crucial in the design and construction 
for the practice pool at Fulshear High School. 
 
  
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.A.#17b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

140



141



142



143



144



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES 

FOR THE PRACTICE POOL AT GEORGE RANCH HIGH SCHOOL 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc. A Jones & 
Carter Company for professional surveying services for the practice pool at George 
Ranch High School in the amount of $4,500 and authorize the Board President to 
execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Professional surveying services is a professional service that the District must contract 
directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Professional surveying services will include survey of existing grading, existing 
structures and underground utilities.  This work is crucial in the design and construction 
for the practice pool at George Ranch High School. 
 
  
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.A.#17c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

145



146



147



148



149



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SCHEMATIC DESIGN FOR THE 
PRACTICE POOL AT FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the schematic design for the practice pool at 
Foster High School, as presented by PBK Architects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
On November 4, 2014, Lamar CISD passed a bond referendum that included the 
practice pool at Foster High School. The schematic design includes eight competition 
swim lanes, shallow area for the fourth grade swim program, locker rooms, and spectator 
seating. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Board of Trustees approved the facility program and authorized the schematic 
design to begin at their regular May 2016 meeting. PBK Architects will be presenting the 
schematic design for the practice pool at Foster High School.  The new practice pool 
facility will be a separate structure adjacent to Foster High School.  
 
Upon approval, the design development phase will begin. The schematic design 
booklets will be provided under separate cover.   
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#18a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

150



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SCHEMATIC DESIGN FOR THE 
PRACTICE POOL AT FULSHEAR HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the schematic design for the practice pool at 
Fulshear High School, as presented by PBK Architects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
On November 4, 2014, Lamar CISD passed a bond referendum that included the 
practice pool at Fulshear High School. The schematic design includes eight competition 
swim lanes, shallow area for the fourth grade swim program, locker rooms, and 
spectator seating.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Board of Trustees approved the facility program and authorized the schematic 
design to begin at their regular May 2016 meeting. PBK Architects will be presenting the 
schematic design for the practice pools at Fulshear High School.  The new practice pool 
facility will be a separate structure adjacent to Fulshear High School.  
 
Upon approval, the design development phase will begin. The schematic design 
booklets will be provided under separate cover.   
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#18b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

151



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SCHEMATIC DESIGN FOR THE 

PRACTICE POOL AT GEORGE RANCH HIGH SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the schematic design for the practice pool at 
George Ranch High School, as presented by PBK Architects. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
On November 4, 2014, Lamar CISD passed a bond referendum that included the 
practice pool at George Ranch High School. The schematic design includes eight 
competition swim lanes, shallow area for the fourth grade swim program, locker rooms, 
and spectator seating.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Board of Trustees approved the facility program and authorized the schematic 
design to begin at their regular May 2016 meeting. PBK Architects will be presenting the 
schematic design for the practice pools at George Ranch High School.  The new 
practice pool facility will be a separate structure adjacent to George Ranch High School.  
 
Upon approval, the design development phase will begin. The schematic design 
booklets will be provided under separate cover.   
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.A.#18c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

152



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TEXAS ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS REVIEW AND 
INSPECTION FOR THE HUGGINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

DRIVEWAY IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Winning Way Services for Texas Accessibility 
Standards Review and inspection for the Huggins Elementary driveway improvements 
in the amount of $1,175 and authorize the Board President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Texas Accessibility Standards Review and Inspection is a professional service that the 
District must contract directly.  The Huggins Elementary driveway improvements will be 
funded from surplus funds from the 2011 Bond Program. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
TAS Plan Review and inspection is required in order to verify the plans comply with 
Texas Accessibility Standards. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 
 

9.A.#19. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

153



 
P.O. BOX 750953 
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77275 

 
OFFICE               281-922-0700  
PAGER               281-278-1833 
TOLL FREE     1-866-922-7260 
E-MAIL   bill@winningway.net  

 
 
 
 
 
PLAN REVIEWS – INSPECTIONS 
BUILDING CODE – ACCESSIBILITY – ENERGY – FIRE 
 
 
July 15, 2016        
 
 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
3911 Ave I 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 
Attention: Mr. Kevin McKeever  
  Lamar Consolidated ISD  
 
Project: Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
  Huggins Elementary School  
  #1 Huggins Drive    
  Fulshear, Fort Bend County, Texas  
 
Regarding: Proposal – Lamar Consolidated ISD – Huggins ES New Parent Dr 
  TAS Plan Review and Inspection  

 
  
Dear Mr. Kevin McKeever,     
 
 
I am pleased to submit this proposal for a code compliance review and report of the above referenced project. 
Winning Way Services, Inc. (hereinafter “Consultant”) shall provide to Lamar Consolidated School District – 
and their representative, VLK Architects (hereinafter “Client”) the services described below, under the terms and 
qualifications described below, for the compensation described below... 
 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
The Consultant shall perform the following services: 
 
The plan review shall examine compliance conditions for the Texas Accessibility Standards. The review will be 
completed to ensure substantial compliance with the codes referenced.  

 
The Consultant will prepare a written report identifying conditions observed to not be in substantial compliance 
with the codes mentioned above, listing discrepancies, missing information, partial information, and non-
compliance to the code referenced. 

 

154

mailto:bill@winningway.net


Proposal - Lamar Consolidated ISD 
Huggins ES New Parent Dr     
July 15, 2016      
Page 2 of 4 
 
The Texas Accessibility Standards Plan Review will follow the prescribed standards as set forth for, Registered 
Accessibility Specialists, licensed by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulations, and conducted by a 
Registered Accessibility Specialist, using the 2012 Texas Accessibility Standards.    
 
The completion of the code reviews will be as mutually agreed by all parties and will be dependent on 
submission of 100% plan sets with specifications, and addenda as issued by the design professionals.    

 
COMPENSATION: 
 
The scope of work described above will be performed for the following fee, subject to the terms and 
qualifications of this proposal: 
 
 
 Lamar Consolidated ISD – Huggins ES New Parent Dr  
   

    TAS – Plan Review   $500.00 
      TAS – Site Inspection     $500.00  

       TDLR Fee     $175.00  
         
        Total             $1,175.00 
 
TERMS AND QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
Receipt of a fully executed copy of this proposal will be sufficient for initiating the work, provided all required 
plans and related documents are submitted. A signature block has been provided for the purpose of accepting 
this proposal in its entirety. This proposal becomes the agreement between us.  
 
Invoicing will be submitted on or about the 1st of each month corresponding to the portion of work completed. 
All invoices will be due upon receipt. Timely payment of invoices is critical for the successful completion of 
the work. The Consultant reserves the right to stop all work should invoices not be paid timely. Invoices, which 
are unpaid after 15 days from the invoice date, are subject to an interest charge on professional services not to 
exceed the maximum non-usurious interest rate plus attorney’s fees and collection expenses.  
 
Any and all information, reports, drawings, specifications and other documents, including those in electronic 
form, that have been developed by the Consultant and the Consultant’s consultants are Instruments of Service 
for use solely with this project. Unless final payment has been received for all work performed, use of any 
portion of the work for any purpose is expressly prohibited unless written permission has been received from 
the Consultant. 

 
The Client acknowledges that the requirements of the various codes used in the review of this project will be 
subject to various and possibly contradictory interpretations. The Consultant, therefore, will use his reasonable 
professional efforts and judgment to interpret the applicable requirements of such codes as they apply to the 
project. The Client acknowledges that the Consultant’s scope of work does not include any services related to 
the presence of hazardous or toxic materials. 

155



Proposal - Lamar Consolidated ISD 
Huggins ES New Parent Dr     
July 15, 2016      
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
The Consultant in connection with the services requested or performed herein is that the Consultant will use that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar conditions by average members of our profession 
practicing in the same or similar locality.  

 
The Client shall be solely responsible for the accuracy and sufficiency of all documents submitted to the 
Consultant for use on this project including but not limited to the construction documents, specifications, as-
built drawings, surveys, soils reports, cut sheets, etc. 

 
The Client shall keep the Consultant apprised of all project information. 

 
In the event of disputes, both parties agree to mediation, which shall take place in Houston.  

 
The Client acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to consult an attorney regarding the contents of this 
proposal. 

 
The provisions of this agreement are not to be construed more strictly against the Consultant that drafted this 
proposal than the Client.  
 
Either party may terminate this agreement for any reason upon five (5) days written notice. The Consultant shall 
be paid for any and all work to date of termination 
 
In executing and entering into this agreement, neither the Client nor his attorney has relied on any statement or 
representation pertaining to this agreement (outside this written agreement) made by the Consultant or anyone 
representing the Consultant. 
 
This proposal contains the entire agreement between the Consultant and the Client and both the Consultant and 
the Client acknowledge that they have carefully read the contents and understand their meaning and effect. 

 
This agreement is made in Harris County, Texas and construed and interpreted in Texas law. 

 
This proposal does not include the securing of any approvals and permits or any fees associated with City / 
County approvals and permits. 
 
This proposal is valid for fourteen (14) days. If not accepted within fourteen days, the Consultant reserves the 
right to modify this proposal. 

 
I have assembled this proposal based on my understanding of your specific needs related to this project. I am 
extremely interested in working with you on this project and look forward to hearing back from you. 
 
 
 
 
 

156



Proposal - Lamar Consolidated ISD 
Huggins ES New Parent Dr     
July 15, 2016      
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
William T. Winning III – CBO  
WINNING WAY SERVICES, INC. 
Cc: File 
 
 
 
ACCEPTANCE: 
This proposal is accepted and agreed to by Lamar Consolidated ISD subject to the terms and qualifications 
contained herein. 
 
_____________________________    ________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
_____________________________    ________________________ 
Name        Witness 
 
_____________________________ 
Title 
 
CC:   

157



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CSP #32-2016VRG FOR  
THE HUGGINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DRIVEWAY IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Bass Construction Company for the construction of the 
Huggins Elementary driveway improvements in the amount of $585,000. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Competitive Sealed Proposal #32-2016VRG solicited proposals for the construction of the 
Huggins Elementary driveway improvements. The Huggins Elementary driveway 
improvements will be funded from surplus funds from the 2011 Bond Program. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
One proposal was received on August 2, 2016.  Having reviewed the weighted contractor 
evaluation criteria, Vanir-Rice & Gardner and VLK Architects recommend the contract for 
construction be awarded to the highest ranked firm, Bass Construction Company.   
 
Base Bid      $497,000 
Alt. #1 Walkway Cover     $  49,000 
Alt #2 Extended Sidewalk & Walkway Cover $  39,000 
  Total Award Recommendation $585,000 
 
The amount of the recommended proposal is under the established construction budget. 
Upon approval, Bass Construction Company will begin construction of the Huggins 
Elementary driveway improvements. A copy of the Bid Tabulation is attached. 
 
  
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

9.A.#20. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

158



159



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CENTERPOINT ENERGY TEMPORARY ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE FEES FOR LINDSEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve CenterPoint Energy’s temporary electrical service 
fees for Lindsey Elementary in the amount of $2,022 and authorize the Board 
President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
CenterPoint Energy is the electrical service provider that the District must contract 
directly with for the installation of electrical service. These funds were allocated within 
the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
CenterPoint Energy will install and remove overhead transformer for temporary power 
during construction of Lindsey Elementary. 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#21. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

160



This Facilities Extension Agreement is entered into by and  between ______________________ 
________________________________________________________________________, herein 
called "Retail Customer" and CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC, herein called 
"Company" (hereinafter referred to as Agreement) for the construction, extension, installation, 
modification, repair, upgrade, conversion, relocation, de-energization or removal of Company's 
Delivery System, including temporary facilities (hereinafter referred to as facilities extension or 
extension), as described herein.

AGREEMENTS AND FORMS

FACILITIES EXTENSION AGREEMENT

6.3

6.3.1

Drymalla Construction Comp.

Sheet No. 6.24 
Page 1 of 2

CNP 8038

Revision Number: 5th Effective: 9/1/11

This Agreement covers the facilities extension to Retail Customer location at________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________

2431 Joan Collier 

Trace TEMP, Katy, TX 77494

The Company agrees to accept payment of ____________________________________ Dollars 
to be paid by the Retail Customer, as a Non-Refundable Construction Payment in connection 
with the Retail Customer request to extend Company facilities to the above described location as 
follows:

Two-thousand twenty-two ($2,022)

Installation and removal of overhead transformer for temporary power.

Chapter 6: Company Specific Items

CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC 
Applicable: Entire Service Area

In consideration of said Non-Refundable Payment, to be paid to Company by Retail Customer 
prior to commencement of construction, Company agrees to install and operate lines and 
equipment necessary to distribute electric service to the identified location under the following 
General Conditions:

   •   Company shall at all times have title to and complete ownership and control over 
facilities installed by Company.

Retail Customer must make satisfactory payment arrangements (if payment is required to 
extend Company facilities) and sign and return this Agreement before Company can 
proceed with the requested extension.

   •   

306

Unless otherwise stated by Company in writing, the Non-Refundable Construction 
Payment amount above is valid for twelve months.

   •   

161



CNP 8038

CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC

CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC 
Applicable: Entire Service Area

Nothing herein contained within this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver or relinquishment 
by Company of any right that it has or may hereafter have to discontinue service for or on 
account of default in the payment of any bill owing or to become owing thereafter for any other 
reason or cause stated in Company's Tariff.

This Agreement shall not be binding upon Company unless and until it is signed by an 
authorized representative of the Company.

(name printed or typed)

Retail Customer

Date

Title

By

(name printed or typed)

By

Title

Date

Nicholas Favre

Senior Service Consultant

06/14/2016

Extension of service facilities is contingent on acquisition of all necessary easements and 
rights of way.

   •   

Chapter 6: Company Specific Items Sheet No. 6.24 
Page 2 of 2

Revision Number: 5th Effective: 9/1/11
307

162



�

�

163



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CSP #27-2016G FOR THE CONSTRUCTION  
OF THE NEW AGRICULTURAL FACILITY #2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve BLS Construction for the construction of the new 
Agricultural Facility #2 in the amount of $2,724,725. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Competitive Sealed Proposal #27-2016G requested prices for the new Agricultural 
Facility #2 on Tuesday July 26, 2016.  After checking references and completing the 
weighed criteria BLS Construction is recommended to construct the new Agricultural 
Facility #2.  This project is funded through the 2011 Bond Referendum.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval BLS Construction will begin construction of the new Agricultural Facility 
#2. 
 
 
Submitted by: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations  
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane  
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.A.#22. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

164



Recommendation: BLS Construction, Inc.

Total Contract Amount 

Overall 

Score
Rank

Evaluation 

Spread

Total Proposal 

Amount
Spread

Drymalla Construction Co. Inc. 93.0 2 1.7 $2,917,100 $192,375

Bass Construction 91.4 3 3.3 $2,909,500 $184,775

BLS Construction, Inc. 94.7 1 0.0 $2,724,725 $0

G.T.T. Inc. 89.4 4 5.3 $2,909,400 $184,675

L.L. & F. Construction Management, Inc. 81.1 5 13.6 $2,761,521 $36,796

CSP #27- 2016G

Firm

AG BARN NO. 2

Final Recommendation

$2,724,725.00

165



 

August 8, 2016 
 

Mr. Ed Bailey 
Program Director 
Gilbane Building Company 
1002 ½ East Stadium Drive  
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
Re: Lamar CISD AG Barn No. 2 CSP #27-2016G 
      VLK project # 1501.00 
 
Dear Mr. Bailey: 
 
On Tuesday, July 26, 2016, Competitive Sealed Proposals were received at the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District’s Purchasing Department. Three (5) Contractors submitted proposals.  
 
Based on a review of the submitted proposals, accompanying proposal bonds and after evaluation of 
the proposals based on the districts selection criteria published in the specifications, per Education 
Code Chapter 44 and SB 669, and per our meeting with Gilbane and the evaluation committee, VLK 
Architects, hereby recommends that the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Board of 
Trustees award the construction contract to BLS Construction in the sum of Two Million Seven 
Hundred Twenty-Four Thousand Seven Hundred & Twenty-Five Dollars ($2,724,725.00). This 
award includes the Base Proposal and Alternate proposals accepted are:   
 
Alternate 1:  Providing Pen Stalls throughout the entire base building 
Alternate 2:  Providing perimeter panel rail system at the Exercise Area 
Alternate 3:  Providing chain-link fencing around perimeter of the pen wings to top of structure 
Alternate 4:  Providing wind/sun break system as indicated 
Alternate 6:  Extension of the building 50ft to the west (Swine and Sheep/Goat Areas) 
Alternate 6A:  Providing pen stalls in the building extension for Alternate 6 
Alternate 6B:  Providing wind/break system in the building extension for Alternate 6 
Alternate 6C:  Providing chain link fencing in the building extension for Alternate 6 
Alternate 7:  Extension of the building 25ft to the west (Cattle Area) 
Alternate 7A:  Providing pen stalls in the building extension for Alternate 7 
Alternate 7B:  Providing wind/break system in the building extension for Alternate 7 
Alternate 7C:  Providing chain link fencing in the building extension for Alternate 7 
Alternate 9:  Providing turbo fan units at each pen included in base proposal. 
Alternate 9B:  Providing turbo fan units at each pen included in Alternate 6A 
Alternate 9C:  Providing turbo fan units at each pen included in Alternate 7A 
 
Bass Construction is the highest ranked proposer based upon the proposed price and scoring of the 
published criteria and therefore represents the best value to the District. 
 
BLS Construction is a Texas based general contractor that has been actively involved in the 
construction industry for many years and has successfully completed multiple school district projects.  
After discussions with their references, we feel they are well qualified to execute the requirements of 
this contract. 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 
Sincerely, 
VLK Architects 
 
 

 Todd J. Lien AIA 
Principal 
 
CC: File 

166



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES  
FOR THE NEW AGRICULTURAL FACILTY #2 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon for construction material testing services for 
the new Agricultural Facility #2 in the amount of $26,000 and authorize the Board President 
to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Construction material testing services is a professional service that the District must 
contract directly. These funds are allocated from within the 2011 Bond Funds. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Construction material testing is a process during construction that insures materials are 
installed correctly. These reports are crucial in the construction of the new Agricultural 
Facility #2. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

9.A.#23. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CENTERPOINT ENERGY STREET LIGHT AGREEMENT 
FOR ARREDONDO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the CenterPoint Energy street light agreement for 
Arredondo Elementary School in the amount of $22,287 and authorize the Board 
President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
CenterPoint Energy is the electrical service provider that the District must contract 
directly with for the installation and maintenance of street lights along August Green 
Blvd.  This is a requirement through the purchase of the land from the developer. 
These funds were allocated within the 2011 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval CenterPoint Energy will install and maintain 10 street lights along the 
August Green Blvd. side of the Arredondo Elementary site. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.A.#24. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

182



  

 
 

July 15, 2016 

 

Ashley Wang/Lorin Pargoud  

PBK 

 

Subject: 6011 August Green Streetlights 

Location: 6011 August Green 

Fort Bend Service Area 

   

To Whom It May Concern, 

 

CenterPoint Energy (Company) agrees to furnish, install, own and maintain street 

lighting service in the above noted area subject to the Lighting Services Rate schedule 

and the corresponding Service Rules and Regulations Relating to the Provision of 

Delivery Service to Retail Customers.  

 

As shown on the attached street lighting layout, the requested installation has been 

designed in accordance with Illuminating Engineering Society of North America 

(I.E.S.N.A.) recommendations with the following exceptions.  Where future subdivision 

streets are shown on a plat which intersect with residential streets where street lighting is 

being installed, the street lighting will not be designed to I.E.S. recommendations at that 

intersection unless it is done at the request of the developer and at the developer’s 

expense.  Additionally, the installation of I.E.S. designed street lighting at the intersection 

of residential streets with non-residential roadways will be done only at the developer’s 

request and at the developer’s expense. 

 

This installation consists of: 

 

 10, 100 watt, 120v, High Pressure Sodium , 9,500 lumen, Midtown style 

luminaries mounted to Traditionaire style poles, serviced by Underground 

conductors. The current monthly Lighting Services Rate schedule fee per lamp is 

$12.92.  

 

The additional cost of electrical power and energy must be provided by your Competitive 

Retailer of choice. Payment of all monthly fees associated with this installation will be 

paid directly to your chosen Competitive Retailer. 

 

The construction cost for this request is $22,287.00 Please remit this payment attached to 

this signed and completed agreement letter as noted in the following information. 

 

This estimate is valid for 180 days from the date listed above. 

 

183



  

The streetlights will be installed at the specified locations depicted on the attached layout.  

Installation of the street lights is contingent on all the street lights being installed at one 

time, after the street paving and curbs have been completed, and all lots have been 

brought up to finished grade level. All easements and rights-of way must be clear of 

trees, stumps, construction debris and equipment, and other obstructions which would 

interfere with the Company’s cable trenching operation. If these conditions are not met, 

our company must ask that the additional construction costs associated with the 

obstructions be paid. 

 

While our company does attempt to maintain standard locations for the installation of 

street lighting, it is not always possible to install street lighting at these locations.  Any 

adjustments needed should be discussed and resolved during the pre-construction walk. 

Any relocation requested can be done if it does not create operating problems and is not 

objectionable to other parties.  All costs associated with relocations after the installation 

of the street lighting will be borne by the party making the request. 

 

Please reference the attached Master Contact Data Form and fill in all required fields.  

This information is needed to create new or verify existing unique account numbers 

called Electric Service Identifiers (ESI’s).  You will be personally notified if you must 

choose a Competitive Retailer and personally forward the ESI number to that 

Competitive Retailer chosen. If so required, you will be responsible for following the 

instructions on the Competitive Retailer Selection Form that will be forwarded to you 

with the ESI number on it.  You will also be responsible for insuring that your chosen 

Competitive Retailer follows their instructions noted on this same form. During this 

process, our company does not know which Competitive Retailer you are choosing. This 

request cannot be scheduled for construction until your Competitive Retailer of choice 

has made contact with our company per the instructions on the Competitive Retailer 

Selection Form.   

 

The Competitive Retailer, yourself, and I will negotiate the electric energize date of the 

requested street lighting. You can learn more on how to contact and choose a 

Competitive Retailer by calling 1-866-797-4839 or viewing the www.powertochoose.org 

website.  

 

If this is in accordance with your understanding and acceptance, please indicate so in the 

spaces provided below and return this signed letter, the master contact data form, 

and the signed layout to the Service Consultant that provided you with these documents.  

 

 

If you have any questions please contact Marcus Richardson at (713) 945-7418.  

 

 

 

Mail all documentation mentioned in the agreement to:  

 

 

CenterPoint Energy  

Attn: Marcus Richardson  

4700 S. Shaver St., Bldg. I  

Houston, TX 77034  

184



  

 

If you have any questions please contact me at (713) 945-7418. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Marcus Richardson 

Service Consultant 

Lighting Design Services Department 

 
 

 

 

Please print all entries below except for signature. 

 

 

 

Approved and accepted this ___________ day of ___________, 2016. 

 

Signature  ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Printed Title  ___________________________________________________________ 

  

Printed Name ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Phone  ___________________________________________________________ 

 

 

SAP # - 71617753 

 

185



186



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEYING 
SERVICES FOR THE SUPPORT SERVICES FACILITY NEW SITE 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc. A Jones & 
Carter Company for professional topographic surveying services for the Support 
Services Facility new site in the amount of $11,000 and authorize the Board President 
to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Professional topographic surveying services is a professional service that the District 
must contract directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Professional topographic surveying services will include survey of existing grading in 
the densely wooded area of the site that was not included in the previous boundary 
and utility survey, and survey of a portion of Lane Avenue for utility design information.  
This work will be performed only in the area required by the planned development of 
the site. This work is crucial in the design and construction of the Support Services 
Facility new site. 
 
  
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.A.#25. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

187



188



189



190



191

srooney
Polygon

srooney
Text Box
We need a topo survey on a 100' grid in the area to be developed. The contours shown are based on the perimeter points only.

srooney
Polygon

srooney
Callout
The full extent of Lane Drive needs to be surveyed to a point 100' past the intersection with Mustang.



 
 
 
 
 

 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NEW APPRAISERS FOR  
TEACHING STAFF, 2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2016-2017 appraiser(s) who have recently become 
certified or are new to Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD). 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Rules adopted by the State Board of Education indicate that the local District Board of 
Trustees must approve appraisers other than the teacher’s supervisor. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Listed below are staff members who are new to LCISD or have recently become certified as 
appraisers for the 2016-2017 school year. 
 

Yunghee Choi 
Carolyn Flemming 

Theresa Gage 
Katrina Guillory 

  
  
Submitted by: Dr. Kathleen M. Bowen, Chief Human Resources Officer  
 Courtney Beard, Personnel Specialist                                          
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.B.#1. – PERSONNEL 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

192



 
 
  

INFORMATION ITEM: STATE OF TEXAS ASSESSMENTS OF ACADEMIC READINESS 
(STAAR) RESULTS -- SPRING 2016 

 
The below tables represent the preliminary results for all students tested and do not represent the final STAAR 
results used for accountability. STAAR results disaggregated by student groups are provided in this report for 
the district and individual campuses. Any student group designated with a ‘--‘ has less than ten students and 
will not count as an indicator for evaluation. 
 
From 2012 through 2015, Texas schools transitioned into the State of Texas Assessments of Academic 
Readiness (STAAR) and the STAAR End of Course (EOC) tests at a minimum standard called the “Level II -- 
Satisfactory, Phase-In 1” standard. Starting with the 2016 administration, the “Level II – Satisfactory” standard 
will increase the number of questions a student must answer correct 2% to 4% per school year until the Spring 
2022 administration. In Spring 2022, students will be evaluated on the “Level II – Satisfactory, Final Standard” 
indicating an expectation to answer an average of 75% or more questions correct on the state assessments. 
Students in the below data sets have met or exceeded the first increase in standards and are considered by 
the Texas Education Agency as ‘sufficiently prepared’ for the next course or grade level. 
 
As was well publicized, the 2016 STAAR and EOC administration was the first to be implemented by the new 
state testing contractor, Educational Testing Service (ETS). Thus far, other than the delay in receiving grade 3-
8 results until July, widely noted problems with ETS have had a minimal and insignificant impact on LCISD. 
 
Section I – 2016 LCISD Estimated Results by Subject Area: 
 

  

Mathematics Reading/ELA Writing Science Social Studies 

Total 
Students 

Met 
Std 

Total 
Students 

Met 
Std 

Total 
Students 

Met 
Std 

Total 
Students 

Met 
Std 

Total 
Students 

Met 
Std 

All Students 14868 85% 17193 80% 4229 76% 6422 86% 5244 88% 

   Economic Disadvantage  6660 77% 7471 69% 1884 64% 2735 77% 2116 80% 

   African American 2816 81% 3281 77% 803 74% 1188 84% 1071 88% 

   American Indian/Alaskan Native 46 78% 54 74% -- -- 23 78% 22 86% 

   Asian 893 97% 1050 93% 263 94% 422 95% 322 97% 

   Hispanic/Latino 6777 80% 7687 73% 1904 67% 2857 80% 2286 82% 

   Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 14 93% 15 87% -- -- -- -- -- -- 

   Two or More 288 91% 328 92% 90 87% 112 92% 72 94% 

   White 4034 94% 4778 91% 1156 88% 1815 95% 1467 96% 

   LEP 1933 75% 2057 60% 572 57% 656 63% 312 55% 

   Special Ed  1127 45% 1222 32% 279 26% 459 46% 331 42% 

 
 
  

10.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

193



 

Section II – 2014-2016 State versus District Results by Grade Level for STAAR and STAAR-EOC: 
 

State v. LCISD STAAR 3-8 Estimated Results  
2014 to 2016 

Grade STAAR Test 2014 State 
2014 

LCISD 
2015 State 

2015 
LCISD 

2016 State 
2016 

LCISD 

Grade 3 Reading 76% 82% 77% 85% 74% 81% 

Grade 3 Math 70% 82% 77% 82% 76% 86% 

Grade 4 Reading 74% 81% 74% 79% 77% 83% 

Grade 4 Math 70% 83% 73% 81% 74% 83% 

Grade 4 Writing 73% 78% 70% 76% 69% 73% 

Grade 5 Reading 85% 91% 78% 83% 75% 90% 

Grade 5 Math 88% 95% 79% 88% 79% 92% 

Grade 5 Science 73% 79% 72% 78% 75% 80% 

Grade 6 Reading 77% 85% 76% 82% 71% 80% 

Grade 6 Math 79% 85% 75% 84% 74% 83% 

Grade 7 Reading 75% 84% 75% 81% 72% 79% 

Grade 7 Math 67% 78% 72% 77% 71% 75% 

Grade 7 Writing 70% 82% 72% 77% 70% 77% 

Grade 8 Reading 89% 93% 78% 84% 82% 88% 

Grade 8 Math 86% 89% 75% 89% 73% 90% 

Grade 8 Science 71% 78% 70% 78% 76% 84% 

Grade 8 Social Studies 62% 71% 64% 76% 65% 77% 

 
 

State v. LCISD STAAR EOC Estimated Results  
2014 to 2016 

STAAR EOC 2014 State 
2014 

LCISD 
2015 State 

2015 
LCISD 

2016 
State 

2016 
LCISD 

English I 67% 74% 71% 74% 68% 67% 

English II 69% 78% 72% 77% 72% 73% 

Algebra I 80% 81% 81% 77% 82% 78% 

Biology 89% 91% 91% 90% 89% 91% 

US History 92% 95% 91% 93% 92% 95% 

 
 

  

194



Section III – 2016 LCISD Estimated Results for Elementary Campuses: 
 

Adolphus Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 91% 87% 92% 83% 

   Economic Disadvantage  75% 57% 69% 77% 

   African American 81% 72% 86% 71% 

   Asian 97% 97% 90% 100% 

   Hispanic/Latino 91% 90% 89% 86% 

   White 93% 89% 97% 81% 

   LEP 82% 77% -- -- 

   Special Ed  53% 50% -- -- 

 

Arredondo Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 76% 75% 53% 78% 

   Economic Disadvantage  69% 67% 48% 61% 

   African American 58% 67% 45% 57% 

   Asian 90% 81% 60% -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 81% 77% 53% 68% 

   White 88% 81% 53% 96% 

   LEP 75% 65% -- -- 

   Special Ed  36% 36% 8% -- 

 

Austin Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 95% 94% 88% 92% 

   Economic Disadvantage  87% 83% 79% 71% 

   African American 91% 91% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 93% 89% 85% 86% 

   White 97% 98% 91% 98% 

   LEP -- -- -- -- 

   Special Ed  57% 50% -- -- 

 

Beasley Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 81% 79% 70% 84% 

   Economic Disadvantage  78% 77% 65% 82% 

   African American 81% 85% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 79% 77% 68% 85% 

   White 95% 85% -- -- 

   LEP 73% 63% 67% 85% 

   Special Ed  -- -- -- -- 

 
  

195



 

Bowie Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 79% 67% 53% 58% 

   Economic Disadvantage  79% 65% 50% 56% 

   African American 56% 44% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 81% 68% 53% 58% 

   White 74% 64% -- 55% 

   LEP 84% 68% 56% 58% 

   Special Ed  59% 17% -- 17% 

 

Campbell Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 99% 99% 95% 98% 

   Economic Disadvantage  -- -- -- -- 

   African American 100% 100% -- 100% 

   Asian 100% 100% -- 91% 

   Hispanic/Latino 100% 98% 93% 96% 

   White 98% 99% 96% 100% 

   LEP -- -- -- -- 

   Special Ed  94% 81% -- -- 

 

Dickinson Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 97% 97% 93% 98% 

   Economic Disadvantage  80% 90% -- -- 

   African American 91% 82% -- -- 

   Asian 100% 100% -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 88% 94% 80% 100% 

   White 99% 98% 93% 97% 

   LEP -- -- -- -- 

   Special Ed  79% 71% -- -- 

 

Frost Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 98% 97% 91% 97% 

   Economic Disadvantage  100% 100% -- -- 

   African American 100% 100% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 98% 96% 91% 93% 

   White 99% 98% 92% 100% 

   LEP -- -- -- -- 

   Special Ed  94% 82% -- -- 

 

Hubenak Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 96% 94% 85% 93% 

   Economic Disadvantage  92% 91% 78% 80% 

   African American 95% 95% 88% 92% 

   Asian 98% 95% 100% 90% 

   Hispanic/Latino 94% 93% 71% 88% 

   White 98% 94% 89% 100% 

   LEP 93% 83% 50% 74% 

   Special Ed  84% 68% -- -- 

  

196



 

Huggins Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 91% 87% 86% 84% 

   Economic Disadvantage  74% 67% 77% 60% 

   African American 71% 67% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 84% 79% 85% 86% 

   White 93% 89% 86% 88% 

   LEP 75% 70% -- -- 

   Special Ed  39% 43% 45% -- 

 

Hutchison Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 87% 84% 78% 78% 

   Economic Disadvantage  82% 78% 74% 66% 

   African American 90% 90% 86% 75% 

   Asian 97% 88% 96% 86% 

   Hispanic/Latino 77% 75% 62% 75% 

   White 82% 82% 73% 78% 

   LEP 77% 66% 74% 62% 

   Special Ed  59% 44% 20% 43% 

 

Jackson Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 91% 85% 71% 82% 

   Economic Disadvantage  91% 84% 70% 81% 

   African American 90% 81% -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 91% 86% 72% 83% 

   White -- -- -- -- 

   LEP 90% 84% 75% 80% 

   Special Ed  -- -- -- -- 

 

Long Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 94% 84% 73% 89% 

   Economic Disadvantage  93% 83% 67% 85% 

   African American 90% 79% 69% 72% 

   Hispanic/Latino 96% 86% 70% 94% 

   White 88% 82% 90% 93% 

   LEP 95% 80% 67% 88% 

   Special Ed  81% 55% 64% -- 

 

McNeill Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 90% 91% 81% 93% 

   Economic Disadvantage  84% 90% 71% 92% 

   African American 87% 89% 86% 93% 

   Asian 96% 91% 79% 94% 

   Hispanic/Latino 86% 91% 74% 94% 

   White 96% 95% 86% 95% 

   LEP 83% 89% 54% 86% 

   Special Ed  36% 45% -- -- 

 
  

197



 

Meyer Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 91% 78% 67% 67% 

   Economic Disadvantage  89% 75% 66% 65% 

   African American 88% 78% 69% 63% 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 93% 78% 72% 65% 

   White 81% 74% -- 90% 

   LEP 86% 69% -- 64% 

   Special Ed  35% 29% -- -- 

 

Pink Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 76% 64% 54% 59% 

   Economic Disadvantage  75% 61% 51% 58% 

   African American 71% 59% 64% 42% 

   Hispanic/Latino 77% 65% 51% 61% 

   White -- -- -- -- 

   LEP 86% 69% 62% 59% 

   Special Ed  45% 28% -- 27% 

 

Ray Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 94% 90% 88% 90% 

   Economic Disadvantage  93% 89% 85% 90% 

   African American 100% 100% -- -- 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 93% 88% 86% 89% 

   White 96% 96% -- 100% 

   LEP 92% 88% 81% 84% 

   Special Ed  70% 52% -- 50% 

 

Smith Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 71% 70% 51% 55% 

   Economic Disadvantage  72% 68% 48% 54% 

   African American 63% 75% 31% 50% 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 69% 67% 54% 52% 

   White 100% 84% -- -- 

   LEP 71% 56% 60% 34% 

   Special Ed  -- -- -- -- 

 

Thomas Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 81% 71% 47% 58% 

   Economic Disadvantage  78% 64% 43% 46% 

   African American 77% 67% 42% 55% 

   Asian 100% 87% -- 80% 

   Hispanic/Latino 78% 66% 43% 58% 

   White 88% 84% 58% 65% 

   LEP 76% 50% -- 36% 

   Special Ed  35% 35% -- -- 

 
  

198



 

Travis Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 74% 66% 58% 62% 

   Economic Disadvantage  72% 63% 58% 58% 

   African American 72% 56% -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 74% 65% 54% 60% 

   White 74% 78% 58% -- 

   LEP 80% 71% 63% 74% 

   Special Ed  27% 15% -- 20% 

 

Velasquez Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 82% 89% 70% 84% 

   Economic Disadvantage  81% 84% 63% 72% 

   African American 75% 83% 60% 61% 

   Asian 100% 90% -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 85% 90% 67% 87% 

   White 79% 91% 74% 92% 

   LEP 75% 75% -- 60% 

   Special Ed  53% 53% -- -- 

 

Williams Elementary Mathematics Reading Writing Science 

All Students 93% 93% 82% 88% 

   Economic Disadvantage  92% 86% 75% 84% 

   African American 90% 93% 82% 93% 

   Asian 96% 95% 94% 85% 

   Hispanic/Latino 93% 90% 72% 83% 

   White 96% 96% 90% 89% 

   LEP 94% 85% 75% 73% 

   Special Ed  53% 58% -- -- 

 
Section IV – 2016 LCISD Estimated Results for Middle School and Junior High Campuses: 
 

Navarro Middle Mathematics Reading/ELA 

All Students 79% 69% 

   Economic Disadvantage 77% 66% 

   African American 79% 62% 

   Asian -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 79% 69% 

   White 79% 79% 

   LEP 73% 53% 

   Special Ed 35% 19% 

 

Ryon Middle Mathematics Reading/ELA 

All Students 90% 89% 

   Economic Disadvantage  81% 78% 

   African American 80% 79% 

   Asian 94% 94% 

   Hispanic/Latino 89% 84% 

   White 95% 96% 

   LEP 92% 92% 

   Special Ed  56% 44% 

  

199



Wertheimer Middle Mathematics Reading/ELA 

All Students 90% 88% 

   Economic Disadvantage  79% 77% 

   African American 84% 86% 

   Asian 97% 95% 

   Hispanic/Latino 86% 83% 

   White 95% 93% 

   LEP 79% 77% 

   Special Ed  53% 45% 

 

Wessendorff Middle Mathematics Reading/ELA 

All Students 72% 70% 

   Economic Disadvantage  67% 62% 

   African American 68% 66% 

   Asian 100% 100% 

   Hispanic/Latino 68% 67% 

   White 84% 82% 

   LEP 54% 46% 

   Special Ed  16% 30% 

 

Briscoe Jr High Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 
Writing 

All Students 91% 90% 91% 86% 85% 

   Economic Disadvantage  82% 77% 86% 75% 69% 

   African American 87% 88% 88% 88% 74% 

   Asian 99% 96% 96% 95% 96% 

   Hispanic/Latino 86% 81% 84% 76% 79% 

   White 96% 95% 97% 93% 91% 

   LEP 73% 53% 58% 47% 56% 

   Special Ed  44% 38% 41% 27% 30% 

 

George Jr High Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 
Writing 

All Students 72% 71% 69% 66% 66% 

   Economic Disadvantage  70% 68% 66% 64% 62% 

   African American 66% 65% 62% 61% 64% 

   Asian -- -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 73% 71% 68% 64% 64% 

   White 77% 82% 82% 80% 77% 

   LEP 46% 36% 36% 35% 31% 

   Special Ed  28% 22% 28% 19% 14% 

 

Lamar Jr High Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 
Writing 

All Students 83% 77% 83% 69% 65% 

   Economic Disadvantage  78% 71% 77% 62% 59% 

   African American 79% 72% 81% 69% 66% 

   Asian 98% 95% 96% 91% 100% 

   Hispanic/Latino 80% 73% 80% 61% 57% 

   White 93% 91% 91% 89% 80% 

   LEP 67% 50% 63% 40% 32% 

   Special Ed  42% 23% 42% 27% 8% 

  

200



 

Reading Jr High Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 
Writing 

All Students 94% 95% 93% 86% 90% 

   Economic Disadvantage  88% 91% 88% 78% 83% 

   African American 89% 95% 88% 83% 85% 

   Asian 100% 98% 100% 94% 98% 

   Hispanic/Latino 93% 91% 89% 78% 86% 

   White 97% 97% 97% 92% 95% 

   LEP 77% 74% 64% 50% 76% 

   Special Ed  63% 57% 59% 26% 50% 

 
Section V – 2016 LCISD Estimated Results for High School Campuses 
 

Foster High School Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 

All Students 88% 80% 95% 97% 

   Economic Disadvantage  79% 64% 91% 91% 

   African American 81% 76% 95% 95% 

   Asian 88% 88% 93% 96% 

   Hispanic/Latino 84% 70% 92% 95% 

   White 95% 88% 98% 99% 

   LEP 59% 25% 67% 60% 

   Special Ed  40% 27% 59% 65% 

 

George Ranch High School Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 

All Students 90% 85% 97% 98% 

   Economic Disadvantage  82% 70% 96% 94% 

   African American 82% 75% 96% 96% 

   Asian 100% 91% 100% 99% 

   Hispanic/Latino 88% 80% 96% 95% 

   White 96% 91% 98% 99% 

   LEP 82% 38% 75% 76% 

   Special Ed  52% 20% 69% 58% 

 

Lamar Cons High School Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 

All Students 69% 63% 88% 94% 

   Economic Disadvantage  63% 54% 83% 91% 

   African American 54% 59% 86% 91% 

   Asian 100% 86% 94% 100% 

   Hispanic/Latino 69% 59% 85% 93% 

   White 87% 78% 100% 98% 

   LEP 45% 25% 61% 78% 

   Special Ed  35% 14% 54% 58% 

 
  

201



 

Terry High School Mathematics Reading/ELA Science 
Social 

Studies 

All Students 56% 53% 86% 91% 

   Economic Disadvantage  53% 47% 83% 89% 

   African American 45% 47% 87% 94% 

   Asian -- -- -- -- 

   Hispanic/Latino 56% 53% 85% 90% 

   White 71% 58% 87% 95% 

   LEP 37% 20% 66% 66% 

   Special Ed  25% 9% 43% 59% 

 
 
Resource Persons: Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator 
   Brian Moore, Director of Research, Assessment, and Accountability 

202



 
 

 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  BOARD POLICIES – FIRST READING 
 
 

The following local policies are attached for review: 
 

 BBI (LOCAL) – Board Members:  Technology Resources and Electronic 
Communications  

 BE (LOCAL) – Board Meetings 

 BED (LOCAL) – Board Meetings:  Public Participation 

 CAA (LOCAL) – Fiscal Management Goals and Objectives:  Financial Ethics 
 
 
Local policies are customized to provide a procedure to enforce the legal policies and 
district guidelines. 
 
 
Resource Person:  Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 

 10.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



 

 

 
 

  
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  CONVERSION AND REMARKETING OF THE SERIES 2014A  
LAMAR CISD VARIABLE RATE UNLIMITED TAX SCHOOLHOUSE BONDS 

 
 

In May 2016, the Board of Trustees approved an Order authorizing the conversion to a 
new rate period and remarketing of the Series 2014A Lamar CISD Variable Rate 
Unlimited Tax Schoolhouse Bonds, as well as enacting other provisions of the Order. 
 
The voters of Lamar CISD authorized the issuance of $249,159,215 in schoolhouse 
bonds in an election held November 8, 2011. As part of the voted authorization, the 
District sold $90,000,000 in bonds as variable rate soft put bonds (Lamar CISD Variable 
Rate Unlimited Tax School Building Bonds, Series 2014A (the “Bonds”)).  The issuance 
of the Bonds as soft put bonds allowed the District to take advantage of low short-term 
interest rates and provided the District with the flexibility to pay off the Bonds when 
merited.   
 
The Bonds were issued with an Initial Rate Period of two years at an Initial Rate of 
2.00%.  Pursuant to the terms of the Order Authorizing the Issuance of the Bonds (the 
“Original Order”), the District was obligated to use its best efforts to cause the 
outstanding Bonds to be converted from the Initial Rate Period to a different rate period 
on August 15, 2016.  This conversion will result in the variable interest rate being reset 
for the duration of the new rate period selected by the District. Administration 
recommended remarketing the Bonds for a term rate period of two years to allow the 
District to take advantage of the short end of the yield curve and maintain variable rate 
debt within the overall debt portfolio. 
 
On August 9, 2016, with the assistance of the Remarketing Agent (BOK Financial 
Securities), and the district’s financial advisor and bond counsel, the bonds were 
remarketed with a Term Rate Period of two (2) years ending on August 15, 2018.  The 
Stepped Rate of 7% and Maximum Rate of 9% for the Bonds was confirmed as 
provided in the Original Order.  The Bonds were well received by investors as a total of 
$194,500,000 of orders were received from fifteen (15) different investors and each 
investor was allocated bonds for their portfolio. 
 
As stated previously, the Bonds were issued at an Initial Rate of 2.00%.  Pursuant to the 
remarketing, the new 2-year Term Rate is 1.05%, and will be effective at conversion on 
August 15, 2016.  Since the variable rate bonds are budgeted at an assumed rate of 
4.5%, this remarketing transaction should result in reductions to debt service budget 
requirements of approximately $5.9 million (net of fees) over the 2017 and 2018 fiscal 
years. A new Term Rate Period and Term Rate will be set in two years. 
 
 
Resource person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 

10.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

224



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF JULY 31, 2016) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A" gives the LCISD collections made during the month of July 31, 2016. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2015 through August 31, 2016. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2015-16 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through July 31, 2016, LCISD had collected 
99.0 % of the 2015-16 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2015-2016. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 

Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

10.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

225



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

July 2016
 

General Fund Debt Service
Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &

Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees
15 482,797.76$                 48,970.68$                  41,326.63$              573,095.07$                   361,234.26$                 77,966.89$               121,563.50$               12,330.42$                   
14 26,425.79$                   5,716.41$                    4,928.78$                37,070.98$                     19,772.05$                   9,205.89$                 6,653.74$                   1,439.30$                     
13 7,963.17$                     2,340.27$                    1,605.32$                11,908.76$                     5,958.12$                     3,356.32$                 2,005.05$                   589.27$                        
12 5,038.55$                     1,210.13$                    728.37$                   6,977.05$                       3,769.89$                     1,633.81$                 1,268.66$                   304.69$                        
11 6,536.91$                     1,539.23$                    911.90$                   8,988.04$                       4,796.93$                     2,041.44$                 1,739.98$                   409.69$                        
10 4,152.77$                     1,624.92$                    815.56$                   6,593.25$                       3,104.34$                     2,030.24$                 1,048.43$                   410.24$                        
09 996.67$                        691.27$                       188.62$                   1,876.56$                       792.80$                        740.40$                    203.87$                      139.49$                        
08 1,007.72$                     869.40$                       223.77$                   2,100.89$                       800.86$                        916.09$                    206.86$                      177.08$                        
07 400.43$                        299.08$                       24.89$                     724.40$                          309.84$                        256.78$                    90.59$                        67.19$                          
06 733.97$                        693.89$                       125.90$                   1,553.76$                       631.12$                        722.68$                    102.85$                      97.11$                          
05 479.50$                        420.24$                       15.48$                     915.22$                          423.69$                        386.80$                    55.81$                        48.92$                          
04 730.06$                        835.65$                       141.53$                   1,707.24$                       645.08$                        879.91$                    84.98$                        97.27$                          
03 446.91$                        446.91$                       -$                         893.82$                          402.74$                        402.74$                    44.17$                        44.17$                          
02 446.91$                        482.66$                       -$                         929.57$                          402.74$                        434.96$                    44.17$                        47.70$                          
01 446.91$                        518.42$                       -$                         965.33$                          402.74$                        467.19$                    44.17$                        51.23$                          
00 506.71$                        643.90$                       14.00$                     1,164.61$                       451.09$                        587.21$                    55.62$                        70.69$                          
99 447.40$                        590.95$                       0.23$                       1,038.58$                       404.27$                        534.22$                    43.13$                        56.96$                          
98 574.31$                        908.50$                       61.53$                     1,544.34$                       530.96$                        901.46$                    43.35$                        68.57$                          
97 574.31$                        959.55$                       63.83$                     1,597.69$                       530.96$                        950.96$                    43.35$                        72.42$                          
96 655.97$                        1,068.37$                    25.98$                     1,750.32$                       595.55$                        995.95$                    60.42$                        98.40$                          
95 605.91$                        993.69$                       -$                         1,599.60$                       573.50$                        940.54$                    32.41$                        53.15$                          
94 608.62$                        1,049.49$                    1.50$                       1,659.61$                       577.08$                        996.60$                    31.54$                        54.39$                          
93 735.64$                        1,334.44$                    5.78$                       2,075.86$                       702.84$                        1,280.72$                 32.80$                        59.50$                          
92 4.52$                            13.26$                         2.66$                       20.44$                            4.30$                            15.26$                      0.22$                          0.66$                            
91 203.96$                        624.17$                       124.22$                   952.35$                          191.01$                        708.79$                    12.95$                        39.60$                          
90 0.26$                            0.86$                           0.16$                       1.28$                              0.24$                            0.96$                        0.02$                          0.06$                            

89 & prior 0.36$                            1.14$                           0.22$                       1.72$                              0.30$                            1.18$                        0.06$                          0.18$                            
 

Totals 543,522.00$                 74,847.48$                  51,336.86$              669,706.34$                   408,009.30$                 109,355.99$             135,512.70$               16,828.35$                   
     

226



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2015-August 31, 2016
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes
Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 7/31/2016

15 173,016,529.71$             6,504,001.05$        179,520,530.76$            177,714,456.29$              755,871.37$            227,076.67$           178,697,404.33$             1,806,074.47$              
14 1,578,079.69$                 118,609.51$           1,696,689.20$                 1,156,232.56$                  169,325.83$            168,769.24$           1,494,327.63$                 540,456.64$                 
13 759,119.83$                    (101,075.17)$          658,044.66$                    312,299.02$                      49,966.20$              34,273.62$             396,538.84$                    345,745.64$                 
12 693,023.94$                    (144,125.57)$          548,898.37$                    233,955.50$                      21,676.57$              11,783.52$             267,415.59$                    314,942.87$                 
11 631,556.26$                    (149,779.25)$          481,777.01$                    213,756.22$                      15,520.70$              8,321.39$               237,598.31$                    268,020.79$                 
10 605,391.03$                    (283,459.67)$          321,931.36$                    95,254.39$                        9,846.37$                5,576.96$               110,677.72$                    226,676.97$                 
09 581,353.50$                    (334,284.69)$          247,068.81$                    66,215.07$                        6,946.25$                2,939.98$               76,101.30$                      180,853.74$                 
08 587,734.40$                    (410,763.81)$          176,970.59$                    9,544.75$                          6,997.42$                2,381.52$               18,923.69$                      167,425.84$                 
07 191,892.59$                    (813.63)$                 191,078.96$                    6,136.63$                          4,563.02$                1,103.98$               11,803.63$                      184,942.33$                 
06 127,543.57$                    (19,120.96)$            108,422.61$                    8,236.34$                          7,188.85$                2,201.09$               17,626.28$                      100,186.27$                 
05 142,756.89$                    (2,177.73)$              140,579.16$                    4,247.05$                          5,124.44$                1,623.31$               10,994.80$                      136,332.11$                 
04 65,622.10$                      (2,519.91)$              63,102.19$                      3,194.18$                          4,288.24$                1,322.74$               8,805.16$                        59,908.01$                   
03 48,382.85$                      (884.69)$                 47,498.16$                      2,101.21$                          2,966.35$                625.80$                  5,693.36$                        45,396.95$                   
02 32,774.61$                      (892.92)$                 31,881.69$                      1,116.62$                          1,563.10$                251.31$                  2,931.03$                        30,765.07$                   
01 30,373.59$                      (952.43)$                 29,421.16$                      1,147.70$                          1,686.78$                257.10$                  3,091.58$                        28,273.46$                   
00 26,210.82$                      (119.72)$                 26,091.10$                      1,160.57$                          1,877.57$                296.83$                  3,334.97$                        24,930.53$                   
99 27,765.44$                      (102.65)$                 27,662.79$                      1,613.18$                          2,964.52$                531.12$                  5,108.82$                        26,049.61$                   
98 19,318.70$                      -$                        19,318.70$                      1,717.30$                          3,348.57$                598.99$                  5,664.86$                        17,601.40$                   
97 17,316.46$                      -$                        17,316.46$                      1,282.27$                          2,550.25$                408.63$                  4,241.15$                        16,034.19$                   
96 16,372.69$                      (5,792.67)$              10,580.02$                      1,750.37$                          3,688.57$                583.16$                  6,022.10$                        8,829.65$                     
95 8,069.69$                        (1,671.22)$              6,398.47$                        1,683.86$                          3,693.39$                566.65$                  5,943.90$                        4,714.61$                     
94 5,144.31$                        (538.75)$                 4,605.56$                        1,066.94$                          2,257.40$                251.43$                  3,575.77$                        3,538.62$                     
93 2,639.02$                        -$                        2,639.02$                        846.63$                             1,645.21$                69.05$                    2,560.89$                        1,792.39$                     
92 3,823.63$                        -$                        3,823.63$                        57.57$                               69.92$                     19.12$                    146.61$                           3,766.06$                     

91 & prior 11,266.58$                      -$                        11,266.58$                      1,709.70$                          5,197.88$                1,036.12$               7,943.70$                        9,556.88$                     
 

Totals $179,230,061.90 5,163,535.12$        $184,393,597.02 179,840,781.92$              $1,090,824.77 $472,869.33 $181,404,476.02 $4,552,815.10

227



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS
PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH
FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

NOV 3.2% 2.2% 7.4% 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0% 3.3%

DEC 49.0% 45.3% 45.3% 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7% 16.8%

JAN 83.9% 82.0% 86.2% 82.9% 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6% 74.9%

FEB 95.4% 95.1% 95.5% 95.5% 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5% 92.3%

MAR 96.9% 96.8% 97.0% 96.8% 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3% 93.8%

APR 97.6% 97.9% 97.8% 97.6% 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2% 94.8%

MAY 98.4% 98.2% 98.2% 98.1% 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1% 95.5%

JUNE 98.7% 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8% 96.4%

JULY 99.0% 98.9% 99.0% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4% 97.1%

AUG 99.0% 99.2% 99.1% 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 97.5%

228



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2015-16 TAX COLLECTIONS

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET
LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 7/31/2016 COLLECTED

 
2015 2015-2016 $175,920,949 $177,714,456 101.02%

 
2014 &  Prior 2014-15 & Prior $2,150,000 $2,126,326 98.90%

TOTAL $178,070,949 $179,840,782 100.99%

229



Exhibit ELAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

SCHOOL YEAR 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
TAX YEAR 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

COLLECTION YEAR
1 Orig. Levy 129,215,668$        132,226,943$        136,145,655$         142,546,726$         153,118,133$          173,016,530$                 

1 Collections 132,086,020$        136,117,707$        140,561,034$         148,220,912$         160,220,428$          177,714,456$                 
Adj. To Roll     4,579,622$            5,417,190$            5,652,043$             6,929,880$             8,680,375$              6,504,001$                     

2 Collections 1,050,557$            915,762$               739,542$                739,176$                1,156,233$              
Adj. To Roll 53,764$                 (64,337)$                65,612$                  242,601$                118,610$                

3 Collections 329,317$               286,833$               315,459$                312,299$                
Adj. To Roll 13,438$                 162,075$               445,748$                (101,075)$               

4  Collections   199,270$               308,264$               233,956$                
Adj.  To Roll 148,691$               518,252$               (144,126)$               

5 Collections 268,598$               213,756$               
Adj. To Roll 527,967$               (149,779)$              

6 Collections 95,254$                 
Adj. To Roll (283,460)$              

TOTAL:
COLLECTIONS 134,029,015$        137,842,322$        141,849,991$         149,272,387$         161,376,661$          177,714,456$                 
ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 134,255,690$        138,110,343$        142,164,933$         149,618,133$         161,917,117$          179,520,531$                 

BALANCE TO
BE COLLECTED 226,676$               268,021$               314,942$                345,746$                540,456$                1,806,074$                     

ADJ. TAXABLE
VALUE 9,838,825,288$     9,935,638,508$     10,227,325,098$    10,763,507,258$    11,648,294,456$     12,914,681,541$            

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.8% 99.8% 99.8% 99.7% 99.0%
AS OF JULY 31, 2016  

TAX RATE 1.36455 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005

230



  
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 
 

Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 26 $      468,970.35 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 26 $      380,886.35 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Lindsey Elementary)     Application # 2 $      440,926.35 
 
Dumas Painting 
(Pink Elementary)      Application # 1 $        31,568.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 9 $        32,560.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 10 $          5,200.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 7 $          6,350.00 
 
Engineered Air Balance 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 8 $        14,440.00 
 
Franks Iron Works 
(Pink Elementary)      Application # 1 $        17,250.00 
 
Gamma Construction 
(Bentley Elementary)     Application # 9 $   1,762,953.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 51 $        88,193.00 
 
Kelly Kaluza    
(Lamar Consolidated HS Band Hall)   Application # 1 $          4,330.00 
 
Kelly Kaluza    
(Terry HS Band Hall)     Application # 1 $          4,560.00 
 

10.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

231



 
Kelly Kaluza    
(Terry HS Baseball/Softball)    Application # 1 $          7,880.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Bentley Elementary)       Application # 8 $          4,491.52 
 
PBK Architects    
(Lindsey Elementary)       Application # 5 $          2,291.17 
 
PBK Architects    
(Pink Elementary - Reimbursables)     Application # 1 $             165.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Terry HS Baseball Complex)    Application # 1 $          1,800.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Terry HS Baseball Complex)    Application # 2 $          1,800.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Terry HS Baseball Complex)    Application # 3 $          3,600.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 6 $          2,488.05 
 
PBK Architects    
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 8 $             622.01 
 
PBK Architects    
(Traylor Stadium)      Application # 23 $             540.00 
 
Phil’s Plumbing 
(Pink Elementary)      Application # 1 $      265,368.00 
 
Phil’s Plumbing 
(Pink Elementary)      Application # 2 $        18,312.00 
 
Terracon   
(Bentley Elementary)     Application # 8 $          2,857.00 
 
Terracon   
(Huggins Elementary)     Application # 1 $          3,650.00 
 
Terracon   
(Lindsey Elementary)     Application # 2 $        14,244.25 
 

232



 
Terracon   
(Terry HS Baseball/Softball)    Application # 1 $          4,700.00 
 
Vanir, Rice & Gardner  
(2014 Bond Program)     Application # 12 $      213,724.00 
 
Vanir, Rice & Gardner  
(2014 Bond Program)     Application # 13 $      213,724.00 
 
VLK Architects  
(New Ag Barn)      Application # 3 $        67,065.00 
 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

233



  
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  REGION 4 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
This agenda item will be on the Board Agenda each month to provide updates on 
Region 4’s progress with Maintenance and Operations. The following indicate actions 
that have taken place since the last regular board meeting. 
 
Work Request Summary for July, 2016: 
 

 The Department completed 629 requests 

 The Department received 130 requests for the month   
 
Maintenance: 
 
The Maintenance Department assisted by: 
 

 Removing and cleaning lint trap filters in the kitchens at Briscoe Junior High 

 Assembling office chairs at Brazos Crossing 

 Replacing the water filter and cleaning the ice machine at the Lamar 

Consolidated Natatorium 

 Installing a pencil sharpener in a classroom at Adolphus Elementary 

 Hanging a whiteboard on the wall in a classroom at George Junior High 

 Replacing bleacher boards at the tennis courts at George Junior High 

 Hanging a banner in the band hall at Foster High 

 Applying silicone to the awning at Briscoe Junior High 

 Testing the natural gas piping distribution system at Terry High and Taylor Ray 

Elementary 

 Testing the domestic water system backflow device at Smith Elementary 

 Repairing light fixtures in the auditorium at George Ranch High and Terry High 

 Installing ground fault circuit interrupters in the science room at Terry High 

 Replacing fire alarm system devices at Hubenak Elementary and Williams 

Elementary 

 Replacing fire alarm system batteries at McNeill Elementary and Terry High 

 Repairing light fixtures in the auditorium at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Replacing the fire alarm system horn/strobe at Smith Elementary 

 Replacing the fire alarm system batteries at Campbell Elementary 

 Replacing the evacuation system batteries at Terry High 

 Performing bi-annual AED inspections throughout the District 

 Adding concrete to the curb in the parking lot at McNeill Elementary 

 Installing a transition strip in the hallway at McNeill Elementary 

 Assisting in moving the bulk head in the Lamar Consolidated Natatorium 

 Hanging new fire extinguishers in the portable buildings throughout the District 

10.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

234



 Building and installing a new countertop in the teachers’ lounge at Smith 
Elementary 

 Cleaning out the gutters at Jane Long Elementary 

 Installing new signs on the entrance to Common Threads 

 Removing chalk boards to paint the walls at Common Threads 

 Installing new mini blinds in a classroom at Bowie Elementary 

 Relocating desks in the Human Resources department at Brazos Crossing 

 Cutting a floor mat for the front office at Maintenance and Operations 

 Repairing a metal door frame in a classroom at Jane Long Elementary 

 Caulking the sink in the restroom at Arredondo Elementary 

 Replacing ceiling tiles in the concession stand at Traylor Stadium 

 Installing soap, toilet paper and paper towel dispensers in the new restroom for 
the portable buildings at Hubenak Elementary 

 Removing and cleaning the lint trap filters in the cafeteria kitchen at Foster High 

 Replacing the VCT tiles in the ISS restroom at Terry High 

 Repairing a chair and installing mini blinds in a classroom at Adolphus 
Elementary 

 Repairing the domestic water piping distribution system leak at Hubenak 
Elementary 

 Repairing a sink drain at Ryon Middle 

 Replacing wiring on pole lights at Satellite Transportation 

 Retrofitting light fixtures at 1621 Place and Jane Long Elementary 

 Creating new keys for Leaman Junior High 

 Replacing fire alarm system batteries at George Ranch High, Velasquez 
Elementary, and Smith Elementary 

 Replacing the fire alarm system heat detector in the kitchen at Velasquez 
Elementary 

 Repairing the ramp to the gym and the gazeebo at Jane Long Elementary 

 Installing new signs at Common Threads 

 Replacing ceiling tiles and light covers in the gym at Jane Long Elementary 

 Installing a new partition in the boys restroom in the portable building at Hubenak 
Elementary 

 Installing spacers on the bookshelf in the library at Campbell Elementary 

 Replacing floor tiles in the cafeteria at Terry High 

 Repairing drywall at Satellite Transportation 

 Removing a white board and calendar board from the front office at Terry High 

 Repairing light fixture covers throughout the school at Jane Long Elementary 

 Repairing cracks around the windows in a classroom at Navarro Middle 

 Repainting the laminate around the sink area in a classroom at Navarro Middle 
 
Energy Management 
 
Energy assisted by: 
 

 Reviewing and entering monthly gas, water and electrical bills into SchoolDude  

235



 Walking through facilities to ensure the proper function of buildings district-wide 

 Checking schedules and times to ensure max energy savings on lights and 

HVAC district-wide 

 Meeting with engineers for the chiller project  

 Scheduling walks for the project sites 

 Addressing the humidity issues in the band hall at George Junior High 

 Beginning the installation of the heating coil in AHU for the humidity control 

 Monitoring daily at the Fulshear complex due to low city water pressure 

 Meeting with engineers for the chiller projects 

 Attending the elementary prototype meeting 

 Scheduling a meeting with SchoolDude to discuss the upcoming year  

 Continually scanning control and operational issues with HVAC equipment at 
Fulshear High and Leaman Junior High 

 Finalizing the scope of work for the chiller replacement at the Fulshear Complex 

 Receiving the Athletic Coordinator’s schedules for the field houses for football 
season 

 Preparing for presentation through break-out sessions for the coach’s in-service 
at Lamar Consolidated High 

 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works: 
 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works assisted by: 
 

 Stripping and refinishing the floors at Smith Elementary 

 Extracting carpets in the office area of Lamar Junior High 

 Stripping and refinishing floors in the locker rooms at Lamar Consolidated High 

 Deep cleaning the east side of the school at McNeill Elementary 

 Deep cleaning of classrooms and light fixtures at Taylor Ray Elementary 

 Extracting carpets throughout the school at Briscoe Junior High 

 Deep scrubbing and refinishing floors on the second floor at George Ranch High 

 Laying floor finish in the gym and cafeteria at Williams Elementary 

 Deep cleaning and extracting carpets in the office area at Velasquez Elementary 

 Completing the deep scrubbing and recoating of classroom floors at Huggins 
Elementary 

 Deep scrubbing throughout the school at Taylor Ray Elementary 

 Completing the summer cleaning at the Alternative Learning Center 

 Extracting carpets and deep cleaning at Travis Elementary 

 Stripping floors throughout the school at Terry High 

 Sanding the floors of the gyms at George Junior High 

 Sanding the floors in the gym at Navarro Middle 

 Extracting carpets in the library and hallways at Wessendorff Middle 

 Deep scrubbing floors and applying floor finish at Reading Junior High 

 Continuing to deep clean at Foster High 

 Completing the deep cleaning of classrooms at Bowie Elementary 

236



 Stripping and refinishing the floors in the cafeteria and hallways at Lamar Junior 
High and Lamar Consolidated High 

 Stripping and recoating the floor in the 1st grade area at Jane Long Elementary 

 Extracting carpets in the portable buildings at Williams Elementary 

 Scrubbing and recoating the floors in the science rooms at Ryon Middle 

 Scrubbing floors and laying finish in the field house at Fulshear High 

 Deep cleaning the seats and bleachers at the Lamar Consolidated Natatorium 

 Stripping and refinishing the floors in the gym and cafeteria at Hubenak 
Elementary 

 Providing rodent control throughout the District  

 Applying ant control at Arredondo Elementary 

 Providing weed control throughout the District 

 Assisting the Bug Man in providing pest control district-wide 

 Performing maintenance on athletic fields 

 Fertilizing athletic fields district-wide 

 Mowing at campuses district-wide 

 Performing playground maintenance district-wide 

 Delivering tables for the job fair at Briscoe Junior High 

 Trimming trees at Austin Elementary 

 Attending the irrigation demonstration held at Fulshear High 

 Installing a toy at Bowie Elementary 

 Spreading kiddie cushion at Hutchison Elementary 

 Assisting in the fire watch at Frost Elementary 
 
 
 

 
Resources: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

Aaron Morgan, Director of Maintenance & Operations (Region 4) 
  Hector Gomez, Assistant Director of Operations 
  James Carrillo, Assistant Director (Region 4)   
 
 
 

 

 

237



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 1 

  

  
Monthly Report 

2011 Bond Program 
  

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 BUDGET  COMMITTED  UNCOMMITTED  PAID 

NEW FACILITIES 195,237,324.00  11,146,064.96  10,697,952.76  173,393,306.28 

EXISTING FACILITIES 23,724,459.00  146,331,95  4,765,324.62  18,812,645.67 

LAND 2,918,653.00  1,600.00  294.19  2,916,758.81 

TRANSPORTATION 6,100,779.00  -  836,905.00  5,263,874.00 

TECHNOLOGY 21,168,000.00  124,158.25  2,358,577.31  3,683,328.51 

MISCELLANEOUS -  -  -  - 

        

TOTAL 249,149,215.00  11,418,155.16  18,659,053.88  204,069,913.27 

 

          

10.B.#6a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

238



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 2 

  

 
Fulshear HS 

 
Dean Leaman JHS 

 
Field House 

 
Competition Football Field 

 

 
Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS is part of a 

new 101 acre campus in Fulshear, TX.  

It includes a 350,000 sf main building, 
32,400 sf field house, teacher and 

student parking, separate bus drop-off, 

dual gymnasiums, dedicated CTE 

spaces, competition and practice ball 

fields, tennis courts and band practice 

areas. 

 

Current 2011 Bond Program Projects: 

 

 

 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, Dean Leaman JHS, & Sitework :  
(Refer to Design Development booklet for floor plans) 

  

 Substantial Completion issued July 1, 2016. 

 Final punch list items are ongoing and near completion. 

 Fire Marshall and Health Department Final Inspections are complete 

and accepted. 

 Security Cameras are operational and monitored. 

 Furniture is assembled and in place. 

 Track surfacing is complete.   

 Competition football field is sodded, scoreboard, goal post, bleachers, 

press box all installed. 

 Tennis court surfacing is complete.  Netting is installed. 

 Baseball competition fencing is complete, bleachers and press box are 

installed. 

 Baseball field netting is installed. 

 Site sodding is complete.  Hydro mulch is near complete.  A second 

coat will be applied to cover areas that did not grow in per contract 

specifications.  

 Parking and Fire Lane striping is 99% complete.  The parking lot 

space numbering all that remains. 

 Bois D’Arc Road has been inspected and documents have been 

submitted to the City. 

 Detention pond work is complete. 

 

 

Fieldhouse 

 Weight Room Floors are 95% complete. 

 All lockers are installed. 

 Restroom partitions and accessories are complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

239



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 3 

  

 
Ag Barn #2 is a new 15,600 sf facility 

located on FM 359. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

New AG Barn #2:  
 

 Proposals from five contractors were received on July 26, 2016.  BLS 

Construction which provides the best value to the District and will be 

recommended to the Board for approval. 

 

 Plat has been approved by City of Houston Planning and will be 

presented to City Council this month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

240



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 4 

  

 
 

 

Adolphus Elementary 

 

 
Ag Barn renovations 

 

 
George Ranch HS Shell Build-Out 

 

 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium Track & Turf 

 

2011 Bond Closed Projects: 

 
Adolphus Elementary   
New 90,700 sf elementary school located in Longmeadow Farms Subdivision 

in Richmond, TX.  The campus includes 42 classrooms with Promethean 

boards, gymnasium with stage, music room, library, play areas, teacher and 

visitor parking and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $968,368.51  

  

 

Agricultural Barn Renovations  
The renovation included adding a new 10’ canopy around ¾ of the building, 

added ventilation fans, new men and women restroom facilities, an interior 

storage room, grading and drainage work around the building perimeter, new 

electronic gate software, additional security cameras and new tarps for all of 

the animal pens. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $59,322.73 
  

 

 

George Ranch High School Build-Out  
The project included the build-out of 14 standard classrooms and 4 science 

labs inside the existing high school building.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $1,000,871.28 
  

 

Polly Ryon Middle School  
The project included a new 80,000 sf middle school campus located on the 

existing George Ranch HS complex in Richmond, TX.  The facility includes 

22 classrooms with SMART board technology, a cafeteria with performance 

stage, library, 5 science labs, dedicated fine arts rooms, visitor and staff 

parking and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $1,083,368.69 
  

Traylor Stadium Track & Turf  

The project included the replacement of the turf and subgrade for the 

competition football field, as well as installation of a new track surface. 
Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2015: $0.00 
  

District Competition Natatorium 
 

The District Natatorium is a new 36,000 sf competition swimming facility with 

an eight lane heated pool, diving well, weight room, classrooms, offices, 

spectator seating and judges stands. The complex is located adjacent to Traylor 

Stadium in Rosenberg, TX. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $495,714.05 

241



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 5 

  

 
BF Terry High School 

 
George Junior High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Bowie Elementary School 

 

 
Jackson Elementary School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2013) to Terry HS, Lamar HS,  

George JHS, Jackson ES & Bowie ES 
 

Terry High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included a 6,200 sf addition 

for 2 art rooms and 1 standard classroom; remodel of the CTE areas to include 

to new PLTW classrooms and shop area; remodel of the existing wood shop to 

include new storage, exterior doors and an added classroom; remodel of the 

existing ag shop and classroom to include new welding stations and integrated 

oxygen/ acetylene manifold system and a new canopy and graphics at the 

campus main entry.  All classrooms received new marker boards and 

homeland security locksets.   Additional project upgrades included resurfacing 

the existing tennis courts. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $600,993.12 
  

George Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included new paint 

and graphics in both gyms and floor resurfacing in the competition gym; 

chilled water piping was replaced throughout the school; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop, storage and office areas; additional security cameras were 

added and homeland security locksets were added to all classrooms. 

Additional project upgrades included floor resurfacing and repair in the 

competition gymnasium. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $423,579.04 

 

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations to the CTE areas of the 

school included relocation of exhaust systems in the existing auto-tech shop; 

outfitting of lifts and exhaust for a future auto-tech shop expansion; repair and 

painting of the exterior yard vehicle canopy and fenced enclosure; new 

electronic gate for vehicle storage area; new exhaust hood system in the Ag 

shop and installation of an integrated oxygen/acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of May1, 2016: $13,575.35 
  

 

Bowie Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included 

replacement or modification of existing classroom casework; new classroom 

doors; a new sidewalk from the school to Ruby Street; ceiling tile 

replacement; grading and drainage work and all classrooms received homeland 

security locksets. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $184,453.45 
  

Jackson Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included a 470 sf 

kitchen addition with an office, laundry and restrooms; all flooring was 

replaced in the hallways with ceramic or vinyl tile; an additional canopy was 

installed outside the gymnasium; restrooms were renovated to remove trough 

urinals; various HVAC equipment was replaced; library doors were replaced 

and all classrooms received homeland security locksets. Additional project 

upgrades included new HVAC controls for the entire school. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $658,591.95 

242



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 6 

  

 

 
Alternative Learning Center 

 

 
Austin Elementary School 

 

 
Foster High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Travis Elementary School 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2014) to Alternative Learning Center, 

Austin ES, Beasley ES, Foster HS, Lamar JHS, Lamar HS, Taylor Ray 

ES & Travis ES, --Closeout of the project is expected in January, 2015.  

 
Alternative Learning Center(Rosenberg, TX): The project included a 2,770 sf 

addition for administrative offices, inspection, security and a clinic, as well as 

renovations to existing student restrooms, conversion of old offices to 

computer lab and conference areas, and ventilation, exhaust and new wood 

storage for the Ag shop.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $20,652.00 
  

Austin Elementary School (Richmond, TX): The project included replacement 

of all air handlers; remodel of life skills storage area into a restroom; enclosure 

of existing mop sinks in mechanical rooms and removal/replacement of 

sidewalks around the perimeter of the building to address drainage issues.  

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $131,466.50 
  

Foster High School (Richmond, TX):  Renovations to the Ag shop included 

additional welding stations with exhaust hoods, a new exterior canopy, 

covered material storage areas and installation of an integrated oxygen/ 

acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $59,641.00 
  

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  This project included replacement of 

two existing cooling towers at the Central plant serving the high school and 

junior high, as well as replacement of the boiler in the Lamar HS Fieldhouse.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $13,575.35 
  

Travis Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included a new 

parent drop-off drive and canopy along Avenue K; a new staff parking lot at 

the rear of the school; boiler replacement and tie in of a chilled water loop for 

the HVAC system.   

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $29,923.47 
  
Beasley Elementary School (Beasley, TX):  The project included the 

replacement of all air handlers in the building that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $18,379.72 
  
Lamar Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included 

replacement of two boilers that had reached the end of their life cycle.  (no 

photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $19,602.13 
  

 

Taylor Ray Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations consisted of the 

replacement of student restroom exhaust fans that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $16,764.57  

 

243



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 7 

  

 

 

 
Arredondo Elementary School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium 

 

 
Meyer Elementary 

 

 
 

Navarro MS 

 
Dickinson Elementary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Arredondo Elementary School (Richmond TX): 

 

A new 12 acre campus consisting of an 90,700 sf building, parking and play 

areas located in Summer Park subdivision in Richmond, TX 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: 1,668,190.94 

 

The Traylor Stadium: 
 

This project included demolition of existing concession and restroom 

facilities, as well as the construction of a new long jump area and 3 new 

restroom/concession and ticket booth buildings to serve the stadium.  New 

fencing was installed and parking was reconfigured and striped.    

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $521,731.17 

   
Miscellaneous Renovations (2015) to Campbell ES, Frost ES, Pink ES, 

Meyer ES, Dickinson ES, Williams ES, Smith ES, Navarro MS, 

Wessendorff MS & Seguin Early Childhood Center:  

 

Campbell Elementary School (Sugar Land, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016:$7,342.99 

 

Frost Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016:$ 11,091.00 

 

Pink Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $7,743.00 

 

Meyer Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Replaced existing electric 

drinking fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced existing boiler. 

Renovated an existing set of restrooms to meet ADA standards. Installed new 

canopy adjacent to existing canopy.  Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: 

$29,019.00 

 

Dickinson Elementary School (Sugar Land, TX) – Installed new handicap 

accessible sink and free standing utility sink in art room. Replaced existing 

electric drinking fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced and 

relocated electric water heaters. Replaced existing boiler. Uncommitted funds 

as of June 1, 2016:$21,698.57 

 

Williams Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Upgraded exterior lighting. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $247,843.00 

 

Smith Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing boiler.  

 

Navarro Middle School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing drainage area to 

resolve parking lot flooding. Installed new drive. Installed new wall pack 

lighting.  Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $33,513.01 

 

Wessendorff Middle School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing boiler. 

Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016: $6,580.82 

244



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                         August 2016 

  

 Page 8 

  

 

 
 

Seguin Early Childhood Center 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Seguin Early Childhood Center (Richmond, TX) – Installed new parking lot 

and canopy to provide safe drop-off area. Replaced existing electric drinking 

fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced windows in office and 

classroom areas. Uncommitted funds as of June 1, 2016:$53,371.11 

 

245



N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A

New Elementary Schools

Adolphus Elementary 15,710,070$             

Arredondo Elementary 18,738,620$             

New Middle/ Jr High Schools

Polly Ryon Middle School 15,455,109$             

Leaman Junior High 41,386,418$             

New High School

Fulshear High School 82,201,089$             

New Support Facilities

Natatorium 13,014,256$             

Satellite Transportation Phase 2 3,599,370$               

CTE - New Ag Barn 3,316,295$               

Lamar HS Baseball/Softball (Funded from 06)

Existing Facilities

GRHS Shell Build-Out 2,509,191$               

Traylor Stadium Improvements 3,033,608$               

Traylor Stadium - Track & Turf 980,560$                  

Austin Elementary 816,000$                  

Dickinson Elementary 108,000$                  

Huggins Elementary 480,000$                  

Pink Elementary 48,000$                    

Seguin Elementary 940,800$                  

Williams Elementary 312,900$                  

Bowie Elementary 366,000$                  

Cambell Elementary 42,000$                    

Frost Elementary 66,000$                    
Jackson Elementary 1,440,000$               

Meyer Elementary 540,000$                  

Travis Elementary 1,237,200$               

Beasley Elementary 150,000$                  Funding

Taylor Ray Elementary 402,000$                  

Smith Elementary 18,000$                    

Navarro Middle School 247,200$                  Land Purch.

Wessendorff Middle School 64,800$                    

George Junior High School 2,671,800$               

George Junior High School - CTE 95,000$                    Design

Lamar Junior High School 192,000$                  

Foster High School - CTE 255,000$                  

Lamar Consolidated High School 576,000$                  Bid & Award

Lamar Consolidated - CTE 225,000$                  

Terry High School 2,117,040$               

Terry High School - CTE 1,900,000$               Construction

Alternative Learning Center 1,124,400$               

ALC - CTE 275,000$                  

Agriculture Barn 558,256$                  Close-Out

Total Construction 217,212,982$           

Other Programs

Land Purchase 2,700,000$               

Technology 21,168,000$             

Transportation 6,100,779$               

Miscellaneous 1,977,454$               

Total Bond Program 249,159,215$           

LEGEND

2011 Bond Program Master Schedule 

20132011
Project BudgetBond Projects

2017

Phase 1 Funding Phase 2 Funding

2016201520142012

5/11/2016

246



FM 1093 / Westpark Toll Road

J. Meyer Rd.

FM
 762

FM 762

FM
 7

23

FM 1093

FM 359

FM
 359

FM
 3

59

FM 2759

99

59

59

36

90A
90A

90A

90A

36

Brazos River

36

Spur 529 to HWY 59

Ave. J

Ave. M

FM 1640
Ave. K

Ave. F

W
ar

d

FM
 2

21
8

FM
 2

21
8

DYer

Brooks

Mons Ave.
Airport Ave.

G
ra

eb
er

 R
d.

Reinhard St.

Wilburn St.

Islieb
 Rd

.

Ba
m

o
re

 R
d.

10 mi.
59 FrontaGe Road

Southwest Freeway

To Houston

FM
 2

97
7 

/ 
M

in
o

n
it

e 
R

d
.

B
er

d
et

t 
R

d
. 

C
rab

b
 R

iver Rd. 

SansburY
Riverbrook D

r.

G
reatw

o
o

d
   Pkwy.

M
ac

ek
 R

d. M
ac

ek
 R

d.

Ra
b

b
s 

C
ro

ss
. R

d.

Sh
ad

ow

 Bend Dr.

W
 W

in
di

ng
 B

ro
ok Dr.                 E W

inding Brook D
r.

W
il

li
am

s 
W

ay
 B

lv
d. 

R
an

so
m

 R
d

.

Ran
som

 Rd.

FM
 762

Ave. I

Ave. H

Je
an

et
ta

C
o

le
 A

ve
.

La
n

e 
D

ri
ve

Lam
ar D

rive

H
erndon

D
am

o
n

 S
t.

Ave. N
Ave. N

Lo
ui

se

Reading Rd. 

Ricefield Rd.

Maiden Lane

C
o

lli
n

s 
R

d
. 

M
ab

el
 S

t. 

Jackson St. / Ave. H
Underpass

Jackson Street

Liberty Street

Main Street

9t
h 

St
.

9t
h 

St
.

Brazos River

B
ra

zo
s 

R
iv

er

G
ra

nd
 P

ar
kw

ay

Ave. D

Ave. A

3r
d 

St
re

et

H
ou

st
on

 S
tr

ee
t

Thom
pson Rd.

16 mi 
@Fulshear

Katy - Fulshear Rd.

Pi
tt

s 
Rd

.

Rad
io Lan

e

H
or

ac
e 

M
an

n

8th St.

Fort Street

Austin Street

Mustang Ave.

Bellaire Blvd. 99

1

43

2

3 41

42

4

5

6

7

8

10

9

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2938

35

30

31

32

33

34

36

A
D

B

C

M
ason Rd.

Rancho  Bella Pkwy 

21

Lakemont Bend LN.

Farm
er R

d
.

  Skinner Lane
Plantation Drive

Juvenile 
Detention 

Center

Terry Stadium 
& Field House

Traylor 
Stadium

& Natatorium

To Kendleto
n

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Ryon MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Adolphus ES

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

Golfview Dr.

Site for secondary Complex #5

13

W
es

t 
 B

el
lfo

rd

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Site for Elementary #22

Site for Polly Ryon Middle School 

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

39

Houston Street

14

12

44

Maintenance
Central Warehouse

45
40

37

HIGH SCHOOLS
  1 Foster High School  832-223-3800
  2 George Ranch High School 832-223-4200
  3 Lamar Consolidated High School 832-223-3000
  4 Terry High School  832-223-3400

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS
  5 Briscoe Junior High  832-223-4000
  6 George Junior High  832-223-3600
  7 Lamar Consolidated Junior High 832-223-3200
  8 Reading Junior High  832-223-4400

MIDDLE SCHOOLS
  9 Navarro Middle  832-223-3700
10 Ryon Middle   832-223-4500
11 Wertheimer Middle  832-223-4100
12 Wessendorff Middle  832-223-3300

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
13 Adolphus Elementary  832-223-4700
14 Arredondo Elementary  832-223-4800
15 Austin Elementary  832-223-1000
16 Beasley Elementary  832-223-1100
17 Bowie Elementary  832-223-1200
18 Campbell Elementary  832-223-1300
19 Dickinson Elementary  832-223-1400
20 Frost Elementary  832-223-1500
21 Hubenak Elementary  832-223-2900
22 Huggins Elementary  832-223-1600
23 Hutchison Elementary  832-223-1700
24 Jackson Elementary  832-223-1800
25 Long Elementary  832-223-1900
26 McNeil Elementary  832-223-2800
27 Meyer Elementary  832-223-2000
28 Pink Elementary  832-223-2100
29 Ray Elementary   832-223-2400
30 Smith Elementary  832-223-2300
31 Thomas Elementary  832-223-4600
32 Travis Elementary  832-223-2500
33 Velasquez Elementary  832-223-2600
34 Williams Elementary  832-223-2700

DISTRICT FACILITIES/SPECIAL SITES
35 Seguin ECC   832-223-2200
36 1621 Place   832-223-0950
37 Administrative Annex  832-223-0000
38 Alternative Learning Center        832-223-0900
39 Brazos Crossing Admin Building 832-223-0000
40 Common Threads  832-223-0342
41 Development Center  832-223-0000
42 Fort Bend Alternative School 281-239-3431 
43 Fulshear Transportation Center 832-223-0551 
44 Rosenberg Transportation Center 832-223-0289
45 Special Needs Center  832-223-0960

District Map and Directory 
www.lcisd.org

Lamar Junior High

247



  

 

Monthly Report 
July 2016 

 

 

 

 

aem5f53k.vdh.doc Page 1 
 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         
 

Bond Sale 1 Current Budget Committed  
Projected 

Commitments 
Actuals Paid 

Estimated Cost at 
Completion 

Access Controls 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00 

Carl Briscoe Bentley Elementary (#24) 22,010,055.00 19,577,553.00 2,432,502.00 7,546,012.41 22,010,055.00 

Chiller Replacement 1,200,000.00 0.00 1,200,000.00 0.00 1,200,000.00 

Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary (#25) 23,770,861.00 19,751,345.00 4,072,177.00 1,319,058.78 23,770,861.00 

Elementary 26 24,959,404.00 1,002,386.00 23,957,018.00 439,692.00 24,959,404.00 

FHS Baseball 40,000.00 29,250.00 10,750.00 29,250.00 40,000.00 

FHS Water Plant 990,000.00 48,000.00 942,000.00 33,539.00 990,000.00 

Huggins Elementary School 700,000.00 22,210.00 677,790.00 8,560.00 700,000.00 

HVAC Web Controls 1,056,000.00 54,000.00 1,002,000.00 15,430.00 1,056,000.00 

LCHS Band Hall 700,000.00 36,830.00 663,170.00 30,000.00 700,000.00 

Pink Elementary- Foundation 1,056,000.00 513,896.00 542,104.00 126,210.00 1,056,000.00 

Practice Pool - Foster High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 29,400.00 8,855,872.00 

Practice Pool - Fulshear High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 29,400.00 8,855,872.00 

Practice Pool - George Ranch High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 29,391.00 8,855,872.00 

Support Services Center 12,146,000.00 1,159,930.00 10,986,070.00 560,505.00 12,146,000.00 

THS Band Hall 700,000.00 37,310.00 662,690.00 30,000.00 700,000.00 

THS Baseball 975,000.00 108,830.00 866,170.00 33,200.00 975,000.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 1 117,670,936.00 43,816,334.00 73,907,263.00 10,259,648.19 116,870,936.00 

Bond Sale 2           

Elementary 27 24,959,404.00 1,002,385.00 23,957,019.00 0.00 24,959,404.00 

Elementary 28 26,207,374.00 1,002,385.00 25,204,989.00 0.00 26,207,374.00 

James W. Roberts Middle School 22,342,493.00 893,700.00 21,448,793.00 0.00 22,342,493.00 

Fulshear HS Shell 3,849,077.00 179,026.00 3,670,051.00 0.00 3,849,077.00 

Satellite Ag Barn 3,786,750.00 189,000.00 3,597,750.00 0.00 3,786,750.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 2 81,145,098.00 3,266,496.00 77,878,602.00 0.00 81,145,098.00 

Grand Total 198,816,034.00 47,082,830.00 151,785,865.00 10,259,648.19 198,016,034.00 

  

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Vanir | Rice & Gardner, A Joint Venture, is serving as the Program Managers for the 2014 Bond 
Program for Lamar CISD. In this role, we provide leadership for managing individual projects, 
and interface with architects, and contractors. We are the liaison between LCISD 
Administration, Departments and Schools to coordinate all activities necessary to successfully 
complete each project. 
 
We also provide program wide oversight and look for efficiencies, cost reduction and quality 
assurance opportunities.  
 
Accomplishments This Month: 
 

 The Huggins Elementary School Driveway has been advertised for bids. 

 Launched the 2014 Bond website 

 Poured the last grade beam at Bentley Elementary School 

 Completed structural steel erection at Bentley Elementary School 

 Completed the Pink Elementary School water intrusion repairs 
 
 

10.B.#6b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

248



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 2 

 
 

CARL BRISCOE BENTLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 

 
 

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: October 16, 2015 

 Substantial Completion: November 18, 2016 

 
 

 

 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Erection of steel framing is complete. Roof 
panel placement is progressing. 
 

 Topping slabs are complete in all areas A, B, 
C, and D. 

 

 Metal stud exterior framing has begun in area 
B and wall sheathing has begun in area A. 

 

 Placing of CMU walls has begun in area B. 
 

 Ductwork installation, plumbing piping and 
electrical conduit is nearing completion in 
area A. 

 

 Comments have been received from TxDOT 
for FM 359 improvements and responses 
have been submitted for approval. 

 

 As of 7/31/16, the construction contract is 
approximately 39% complete. 

249



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 3 

 
 

KATHLEEN JOERGER LINDSEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 
 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: April 22, 2016 

 Substantial Completion: June 23, 2017 

 

 

 
OVERVIEW 

 Permits have been acquired. 

 Submittals are approximately 20% complete. 

 Piers are complete under the building pad.  

 Approximately 40% of the grade beams are 
in place 

 Underground utilities are approximately 80% 
complete.  

 Site grading is approximately 50% complete. 

 The project is 9.4% complete. 

250



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 4 

 
 

NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS #26 & #27  

 

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Design 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: Third Quarter 2018 

 
 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 Refinement of the Design concept is 
progressing.  VLK Architects has presented 
schematic designs to the building committee. 
Comments are being incorporated to the 
design for further review. 

 

 User groups are meeting to develop detailed 
planning for all spaces in the building. 

 

 Sites have not yet been identified for these 
schools. 

  

251



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 5 

 
 

PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

Phase 1 – Plumbing Repairs and Exterior 
Building Repairs for Water Intrusion 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: June 2016  
 Construction Completion: August 2016 

 
 Phase 2 – Crack Repairs 

 Current Phase: Design Development 

 Construction Start: June 2017  

 Construction Completion: August 2017 

 
 

OVERVIEW 

Pink Elementary School Repairs  

 Work to repair Pink Elementary School has 
been broken into two phases:  
 

 Phase 1 - Plumbing repairs and replacement 
of caulking around the exterior of the 
building are in progress.  COMPLETE 
 

 Phase 2 will repair the cracks in interior 
walls, adjust ceilings, adjust doors that need 
alignment and re-level some floor areas. 

 

252



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 6 

 
 

SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 
 

 
 
The Support Services facility project will provide space to 
expand Purchasing & Materials Management, Food 
Service Support, Maintenance & Operations and 
Graphic Arts 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

Phase 1 – New Maintenance Facility 

 Current Phase: Design 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017  
 Construction Completion: 1st Quarter 2018 

 
 Phase 2 – Renovate Existing Facilities 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2018  
 Construction Completion: 4th Quarter 2018 

 
 
 

 

 
 

OVERVIEW 

Phase 1 

 Maintenance and Operations will be 
constructed on the new site. 

 Floor and site plans have been developed 
and reviewed. 

Phase 2 

 Existing structures currently housing M&O, 
Purchasing and Food Service will be 
renovated. A new dock area and enclosed 
link will be constructed between the two 
existing buildings enhancing access and 
providing additional parking for the football 
stadium. 

 Floor and site plans have been developed 
and reviewed. 

 

 

253



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 7 

 
 

PRACTICE POOLS 
Foster High School 

Fulshear High School 

George Ranch High School 

 
Foster High School 

 

 
Fulshear High School 

 

 

George Ranch High School 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Schematic Design 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2018 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 Schematic Design phase continues. 
 

 Exterior designs that incorporate 
surrounding building aesthetics and themes 
are being used for each practice pool. 

 

 Geotechnical and surveying proposals have 
been received. 

 

254



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 8 

 
 

BASEBALL COMPLEX RENOVATIONS 

Terry High School 

  

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 Current Phase: Design 

 Construction Start: 3rd Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 

 

 
OVERVIEW  

 Building Committee has continued to meet to 
finalize the scope of the work. 

 

 Conceptual design and cost breakdown has 
been reviewed by the Building Committee.  

 

 Scope will include new baseball and softball 
dugouts, new backstop netting, new 
concessions/ticketing/restroom building, new 
softball press box and new paving. 

 

 The prioritization of the Baseball/Softball 
complex improvements has been ongoing 
and will require some work to be provided 
through Maintenance & Operations.  

 
 
 
 

255



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 9 

 
 

BAND HALL EXPANSION 

Lamar Consolidated High School 

 

Existing Band Room 

 
Terry High School 

 

Existing Band Room 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Schematic Design 

 Construction Start: 1st Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2017 

  

 

 

New Rehearsal Hall Addition 

 
 

 

New Rehearsal Hall Addition 

OVERVIEW 

 A new Rehearsal Hall will be constructed on 
each campus. 

 The layout of the building additions has 
been finalized. 

 Schematic Design is being finalized. 
 

 

256



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 10 

 
 

SATELLITE AG BARN #3 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: Pending Site Selection 

 

 

 OVERVIEW 

 A detailed program of requirements and 
building area requirements have been 
developed by the Architects following 
multiple meetings with the Building 
Committee.  

 

 Satellite Ag Barn #2 and #3 are being 
programmed together. 

  

 A Site for the Satellite Ag Barn #3 has not 
been selected. 

 

 Project is on hold until a site has been 
identified. 

 

 

  
HUGGINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NEW PARENT DRIVE 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction Documents 

 Construction Start: 4th Quarter 2016 

 Construction Completion: 1st Quarter 2017 

 

 OVERVIEW 

 Planned work will add off-street parent drop-
off/pick-up to relieve the traffic congestion 
on the streets leading up to the school. 

 

 Additional on-site parking will be 
constructed within the bus loop area. 

 

 Project is preparing to advertise for 
construction proposals. 

 

 Work is planned to begin in the Fall 2016. 
 

 

 

257



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 11 

 
 

FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL WATER PLANT UPGRADES 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Programming 

 Construction Start: 1st Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2017 

 OVERVIEW 

 Have met with KCI Technologies to outline 
the scope of work for the upgrades. 

 

 Plan is to add a new water well and storage 
tank to provide sufficient capacity for the 3 
school campus. 

 
 

 

 
 

HVAC WEB-BASED CONTROLS 

  

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Programming 

 Construction Start: 1st Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2017 

 OVERVIEW 

 Engineers are defining the scope of work for 
the web-based controls project. 

 

 8 schools changing from dial-up modem to 
web-based controls. 

 

 Will require changing of control modules 
throughout schools. 

 
 

258



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 12 

 
 

CHILLER REPLACEMENT 

 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Programming 

 Construction Start: 1st Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 OVERVIEW 

 Engineers are defining the scope of work for 
the chiller replacement project. 

 

 6 schools will have their chillers replaced. 
 

 

 
 

FUTURE PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 OVERVIEW 

 The future projects in the 2014 Bond 
Program will be reported on as they begin: 

 

 Bond Sale 2 

 
a. Elementary #28 

b. Fulshear 6th Grade School 

c. Fulshear Shell Space Build-Out 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 

Foster High School Baseball Scoreboard Completed March 2016 

  

259



  

INFORMATION ITEM: TRANSPORTATION UPDATE 

 ‘ 
 
PERSONNEL CHANGES: 
 
During the month of July, the following changes were made: 
  
 Trainees hired:    1 
 Full time drivers hired:   0 
 Bus aides hired:    2 
 Drivers resigned     0 
 Bus Aides resigned    0 
 
As of the date of this report, we have: 
 
 Total Drivers in Training   4 
 Waiting on skills test   1 
  Ready to take a route   5 
 
Hiring Incentive Paid: Employee  Referrer 
  
 Initial           2            2 
 Six Months         0             0 
 
 
ACCIDENTS: 
 
There were no accidents in July. 
There were no accidents in June.   
 
 
FIELD TRIPS: 
 
 Site   Number of Trips  Miles 
 Rosenberg     12   1,310 
 Fulshear       6   1,368   
 
 
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 
 
The Maintenance Department responded to a total of three (3) breakdowns where the 
bus needed attention or replacement on the road.  
 
 

10.B.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

260



Fuel Usage (gallons)  Rosenberg  Fulshear 

Diesel      3,550     798 

Unleaded     4,578         172 

 

 
ROUTING AND SCHEDULING: 
 
For summer school, some routes ended in June. The following routes continued in July: 
 
PreK/K:   14 
Elementary:     9 
Secondary:     8 
George / Navarro Blast:      8 
Special Needs:  20   (Includes one to Settler’s Way and one to Avondale) 
 
PreK/K and Special Needs routes were home to school.  All other routes were from 
home campus to the summer campus.  Secondary routes also operated at midday to 
accommodate morning and afternoon sessions. 
 
 
TRAINING AND OTHER EVENTS: 
 
New driver training was ongoing in July, and our training supervisor held a 20 hour 
Texas DPS School Bus Driver Certification Class at the Fulshear location.  All new 
drivers must attend the 20 hour class, and all drivers must attend an 8 hour 
recertification class every 3 years. 
 
 
STUDENT DISCIPLINE: 
 
No discipline reports were issued in July.    
 
 
 
Resource Persons:   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 
 

261



  
 

INFORMATION ITEM: PROJECTS FUNDED BY 2011 AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS 
 
 

PLACEMENT OF ADDITIONAL SIX (6) FOOT FENCE: 
 
The M&O Department has completed gathering information for the installation of new 
six (6) foot galvanized fence. These estimates total $260,620. A specification for 
vendors has been put together. The elementary school principals have been consulted 
with to finalize the specification. This project has been advertised and zero (0) bidders 
responded to the request.  We are now changing the specification and will be re-
advertising to try to bring in more bidders. 
  

Beasley Elementary   1,390 ft @ $20/ft = $27,800 
Bowie Elementary    1,776 ft @ $20/ft = $35,520  
Campbell Elementary   1,845 ft @ $20/ft = $36,900 
Hubenak Elementary      490 ft @ $20/ft = $  9,800  
Huggins Elementary      645 ft @ $20/ft = $12,900 
McNeill Elementary    1,600 ft @ $20/ft = $32,000 
Meyer Elementary   1,535 ft @ $20/ft = $30,700 
Pink Elementary    1,570 ft.@ $20/ft = $31,400 
Thomas Elementary        30 ft @ $20/ft = $     600 + gates 
Velasquez Elementary     395 ft @ $20/ft = $  7,900 
Williams Elementary   1,755 ft @ $20/ft = $35,100 

 
 
PARKING LOT LIGHTING RETROFIT: 
 
Maintenance and Operations with the assistance of the Purchasing Department has 
determined that this project has time and will best benefit the District to postpone the 
Competitive Sealed Proposals (CSP) and advertise after the first of the year.  This bid 
process was stopped and will not be brought forward at this time.  The SCORE rebates 
are currently unavailable and could be very significant.  For this reason the project will 
be revisited to insure eligibility with the SCORE Program. 
 
 
Resource Person:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

10.B.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

262



  

 

INFORMATION ITEM:  ENERGY MANAGEMENT REPORT 
JANUARY – MAY 2014, 2015, 2016 

 
 
This report reflects an overall increase of 2,136,107.85 Kwh for January through May 
2016 from the previous year, 2015. For the same time period compared to the year 
2014 the report reflects an increase of 3,224,636.30 Kwh.  
 
Using the baseline approach, the District reflects a decrease of 463,146.03 Kwh for 
January through May 2016 from the previous year, 2015. For the same time period 
compared to the year 2014 the report reflects a decrease of 396,537.58 Kwh. The 
baseline does not include Arredondo Elementary, LCISD Natatorium, and Fulshear High 
School Complex.   
 
The locations with highest decreases in usage from the previous year for the same 
months are Lamar High School, Terry High School, Campbell Elementary, Seguin Early 
Childhood Center, and Powell Point. Decreases at Campbell can be attributed to the 
installation of the new, more efficient chillers during spring break. Other deceases can 
be attributed to a decrease in scheduled activities at these locations. 
 
We are monitoring and trending the temperatures and the operation times to insure that 
we are running when scheduled. We continue to be diligent in our task to find ways to 
become more efficient without affecting the school day.  
 
 
Resource Person, Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 

 

10.B.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

AUGUST 18, 2016 

263



3
,8

5
8

,1
9

7
.4

5

4
,2

7
3

,6
1

3
.2

5

3
,8

6
4

,3
1

7
.4

5

4
,4

4
4

,9
5

8
.2

0

4
,8

8
9

,1
0

1
.3

5

3
,8

4
1

,8
3

9
.4

1

4
,3

1
7

,1
6

1
.9

6

4
,1

6
0

,4
5

9
.8

6 4
,8

4
5

,8
5

5
.8

5

5
,2

5
3

,3
9

9
.0

7

4
,1

1
9

,6
1

7
.4

2

4
,6

9
0

,7
1

6
.9

2

4
,6

6
3

,0
4

9
.0

3

5
,1

4
4

,4
6

7
.0

3 5
,9

3
6

,9
7

3
.6

0

J A N U A R Y F E B R U A R Y M A R C H A P R I L M A Y

LAMAR CISD KWH USE - JANUARY - MAY 2014, 2015, 2016

2014

2015

2016

Year

Month

 Use

264



 Use Year
Month 2014 2015 2016
January 3,858,197.45 3,841,839.41 4,119,617.42
February 4,273,613.25 4,317,161.96 4,690,716.92
March 3,864,317.45 4,160,459.86 4,663,049.03
April 4,444,958.20 4,845,855.85 5,144,467.03
May 4,889,101.35 5,253,399.07 5,936,973.60
Total 21,330,187.70 22,418,716.15 24,554,824.00

Arredondo Elementary 145,920.00 408,192.00
LCISD Natatorium 750,144.00 792,792.00
Fulshear Complex 125,856.00 2,420,189.88

1,021,920.00 3,621,173.88

22,418,716.15 24,554,824.00
-1,021,920.00 -3,621,173.88

Base Line 21,330,187.70 21,396,796.15 20,933,650.12

Lamar CISD

January - May 2014, 2015, 2016
KWH Usage Snapshot

265



 Total Use Year

Building 2014 2015 2016

1621 Place 30,311.00 26,754.00 23,783.00

Alternative Learning Center 132,288.00 150,240.00 131,328.00

Austin Elementary 282,048.00 283,392.00 283,776.00

Beasley Elementary 256,704.00 264,384.00 254,572.00

Bowie Elementary 327,936.00 321,610.00 317,760.00

Briscoe Junior High 1,049,546.90 1,146,101.89 1,125,826.08

Campbell Elementary 495,484.30 483,597.60 424,008.96

Dickinson Elementary 390,528.00 364,032.00 359,712.00

Foster High School 1,210,345.80 1,186,962.94 1,209,451.20

Frost Elementary 399,432.75 404,965.61 399,772.37

Huggins Elementary 453,073.00 427,551.00 416,207.00

Jackson Elementary 322,912.00 325,243.00 340,450.00

Lamar High School 3,008,552.90 3,193,095.05 3,057,426.20

Meyer Elementary 346,346.00 334,811.00 342,373.00

Navarro Middle School 360,000.00 380,928.00 357,888.00

Pink Elementary 414,453.00 381,312.00 393,963.08

Seguin Elementary 254,141.00 263,353.00 224,734.00

Smith Elementary 196,032.00 192,960.00 213,888.00

Taylor Ray Elementary 417,313.00 374,976.00 376,128.00

Terry High School 1,447,934.60 1,474,365.68 1,376,427.52

Travis Elementary 411,154.50 381,862.84 390,184.13

Williams Elementary 423,936.00 411,804.00 453,888.00

Lamar Junior High 0.00 0.00 0.00

Natatorium 155,472.00 148,464.00 115,446.00

Brazos Crossing 312,384.00 244,224.00 210,048.00

Hutchinson Elementary 444,951.05 428,097.61 394,325.09

George Ranch High School 2,023,802.10 2,032,433.52 2,018,674.80

Hubenak Elementary 376,512.00 421,011.60 456,599.53

Thomas Elementary 419,328.00 416,640.00 422,016.00

Jane Long Elementary 518,533.50 538,990.90 517,766.53

George Junior High 903,783.60 874,993.19 838,827.36

Wessendorff Middle School 318,158.50 328,018.67 349,861.39

Band Road 49,233.00 57,347.00 75,298.00

Terry High School - Field House 161,280.00 141,120.00 140,160.00

Velasquez  Elementary 449,546.25 449,891.91 452,482.51

McNeil Elementary 468,453.80 443,983.59 444,929.56

Wertheimer Middle 339,840.00 355,200.00 353,856.00

Staff Development Center 39,120.00 31,120.00 32,960.00

Reading Junior High 580,077.15 571,532.55 557,886.81

Powell Point 146,984.00 163,490.00 73,870.00

Satellite Transportation 253,632.00 265,344.00 301,056.00

Ryon Middle School 357,696.00 353,472.00 355,008.00

Adolphus Elementary 302,784.00 302,016.00 303,168.00

Lamar Baseball/Softball 78,144.00 55,104.00 46,464.00

Arredondo Elementary 145,920.00 408,192.00

Natatorium-LCISD 750,144.00 792,192.00

Fulshear High School 125,856.00 2,420,189.88

21,330,187.70 22,418,716.15 24,554,824.00

Lamar CISD

Electrical KWH Usage - January - May 2014, 2015, 2016

266


	August 18 2016 Board Book WITH Closed Session.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	July 19, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting July 19 2016.docx

	July 21, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting July 21 2016.docx

	August 4, 2016 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting (Workshop) August 4 2016.docx

	August 4, 2016 - Special Meeting
	Minutes Special Meeting August 4 2016.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	Consider adoption of 2016-2017 budgets
	CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2016-17 Budgets 08102016.docx

	Consider adoption, by ordinance, the 2016 tax rate for the 2016-2017 school year
	Adoption of Tax Rates 2016-17 08092016.doc

	Consider approval of 2016 tax year appraisal roll and new property value
	Aug 2016 Tax Year Appraisal Roll and New Property Value 08092016.docx
	Certification of 2016 Values.pdf

	Consider approval of the certification of 2016 tax year anticipated collection rate
	Certification of 2016 Tax Year Anticipated Collection Rate 08092016.docx
	Certification of Anticipated Tax Collection Rate.pdf

	Consider approval of resolution for commitment of fund balance as of August 31, 2016
	Resolution for Commitment of Fund Balance 08092016.docx
	Resolution Fund Balance Resolution 08092016.docx

	Consider approval of 2016-2017 compensation plan
	Aug 2016-17 Compensation Plan.doc
	2016-17 Salary Schedule Final (Revised).pdf

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements July 2016.docx
	MUNIS 953 July 2016 Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report Board Copy July 2016.xls

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	August 2016 Budget Amendments REVISED 2 08122016.doc

	Consider approval of offer to purchase tax resale property
	Tax Resale Property FINAL 08112016.docx
	Tax Resale Letter.pdf
	Tax Resale backup.pdf

	Consider approval of vehicle purchases for Maintenance and Operations
	VEHICLE PURCHASE.doc

	Consider approval of the 2016-2017 agreement with Memorial Hermann Community Benefit Corporation
	Memorial Hermann Clinic Agenda Item 2016-2017.docx
	Memorial Hermann Report to Lamar CISD for 2015-16_Final.docx
	Services Agt -LCISD-Lamar-Community Benefit Corp  Final  063016.pdf
	Services Agt -LCISD-Terry-Community Benefit Corp  Final  063016.pdf

	Consider approval of documentation and process for naming Superintendent designees for automated Texas Education Agency Secure Environment (TEASE) users
	TEASE users.doc

	Consider approval of resolution proclaiming:
	Childhood Cancer Awareness Month
	Childhood Cancer Awareness Month Recommendation.docx
	Childhood Cancer Awareness Month Resolution.docx

	Hispanic Heritage Month
	Hispanic Heritage Month Recommendation.docx
	Hispanic Heritage Month Resolution.docx


	Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to:
	Donations to district.docx

	Discussion and possible action for the final scope of work and budget increase for the Terry High School baseball complex renovations
	DISCUSSION AND OR POSSIBLE ACTION TO INCREASE THE SCOPE FOR THE TERRY BASEBALL SOFTBALL COMPLEX.docx
	2016-08-18 Terry HS Baseball Complex - Scope SH2.docx

	Consider approval of geotechnical study for the practice pool at:
	Foster High School
	Geo pool FHS.docx
	Terracon_Foster HS Natatorium Addition_Geotechnical.pdf

	Fulshear High School
	Geotechnical Practice Pools Fulshear (00000002).docx
	Terracon_Fulshear HS Natatorium Addition_Geotechnical.pdf

	George Ranch High School
	Geotechnical Practice Pools GRHS.docx
	Terracon_George Ranch HS Natatorium Addition_Geotechnical.pdf


	Consider approval of professional surveying services for the practice pool at:
	Foster High School
	Site Survey Practice Pools FHS.docx
	Proposal Site Survey Practice Pools Foster HS Charlie Kalkome   .pdf

	Fulshear High School
	Site Survey Practice Pools CFHS.docx
	Proposal Site Survey Practice Pools Fulshear HS Charlie Kalko   .pdf

	George Ranch High School
	Site Survey Practice Pools GRHS.docx
	Proposal Site Survey Practice Pools George Ranch HS Charlie K   .pdf


	Consider approval of schematic design for the practice pool at:
	Foster High School
	SD FHS POOL.docx

	Fulshear High School
	SD Pool CFHS.docx

	George Ranch High School
	SD Pools GRHS.docx


	Consider approval of Texas Accessibility Standards Review and Inspection for the Huggins Elementary School driveway improvements
	TAS Accessibility Review Huggins.docx
	Proposal Winning Way Services TDLR Accessibility Huggins ES D   .pdf

	Consider approval of CSP #32-2016VRG for the Huggins Elementary School driveway improvements
	CSP Award Huggins ES Driveway   .docx
	CSP Award Huggins ES Driveway.pdf

	Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy temporary electrical service fees for Lindsey Elementary School
	CenterPoint Energy Temporary for Lindsey.docx
	CenterPoint Energy Facilities Extension Agreement Lindsey ES.pdf

	Consider approval of CSP #27-2016G for the construction of the new Agricultural Facility #2
	CSP 27-2016G FOR THE AG BARN #2.doc
	LCISD CSP - Final Recommendation.pdf
	LCISD AG Barn No  2 - Contractor Recommendation Letter - BLS Constructio   .pdf

	Consider approval of construction material testing services for the new Agricultural Facility #2
	CMT FOR THE AG BARN #2.docx
	Ag Barn - Rev  1.pdf

	Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy street light agreement for Arredondo Elementary School
	CENTERPOINT FOR ARREDONDO.docx
	August Green AL.pdf
	Sketch.pdf

	Consider approval of professional topographic surveying services for the Support Services Facility new site
	Site Survey Support Services    .docx
	Proposal Kalkomey Survey Support Services.pdf


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year
	New Appraisers 8 18 16.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	State of Texas Assessments of Academic Readiness (STAAR) Results - Spring 2016
	AUGUST 2016 INFORMATION ITEM - STAAR Draft 072616.docx


	Goal: Planning
	Board policies - First Reading
	BOARD POLICY COVER PAGE.doc
	BBI Local.pdf
	BE Local.pdf
	BED Local.pdf
	CAA Local.pdf

	Conversion and remarketing of the Series 2014A Lamar CISD Variable Rate Unlimited Tax Schoolhouse Bonds
	Remarketing Cover_Piece FINAL 08112016.docx

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 7312016.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS JULY 2016 (00000002).pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region 4 Monthly July 2016.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-August 2016.docx
	Schedule for Monthly Report 5_16.pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	Monthly Report VRGJV SH1.docx


	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update July.docx

	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	MO PROJECTS WITH AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS August.docx

	Energy Management Report
	ENERGY MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR AUGUST.docx
	Chart 16-3.pdf
	Snapshot 16-8.pdf
	School List 16-8.pdf



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	August 18 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	August 18 Resigned Only.docx






